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HA TINH MINERALS AND TRAING CORPORATION - JOINT STOCK COMPANY
No 2 Vu anﬁ Tran Phu Ward, Ha Tinh City, Ha Tinh Provine

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS

The Board of General Directors of Ha Tinh Minerals And Traing Corporation — Joint Stock Company
(hereinafier referred to as the “Corporation”) is pleased to present this report together with the

consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2024,

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT AND BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS

Members of Board of Management and Board of General Directors of the Corporation wha held office

for the year ended 31 December 2024 are as follows:

Manapement

Mr. Nguyen Dinh Toan
Mr.Le Viet Thao
Mr. Vo Van Lun
Mr. Nguyen Anh Thang

Audit Comittee

Mr. Phung Van Tan
Mr. Dao Anh Dung
Mz, Traa Thi Thanh Van

Board of General Directors

Mr.Le Viet Thao
Mr. Vo Van Luu
Mr. Nguven Anh Thang

niant

Mr. Bui Van Minh

Chairman
Member
Member
Member

Head of control board
Member
Member

Genaral Direstor
Dieputy General Direcior
Deputy General Direcior

Chief Accountant

Reappointed on 30 July 2024,

Reappointed on 30 July 2024,

Appointed on 30 July 2024.

EVENTS ARISING AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Board of General Directors confirms that there have been no significant events occurring after the
balance sheet date which would require adjustments to or disclosures to be made in the consolilated

financial statements,

LEGAL REFRESENATIVE

The Corporation's legal representative for the vear ended 31 Decemnber and as of the date of report & Mr.

Le Viet Thao.

THE AUDITORS

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been audited by UHY Auditing and

Consulting Company Limited.



HA TINH MINERALS AND TRAING CORPORATION — JOINT STOCK COMPANY
No2Vu Q“.Iﬂ.l'lE_Tl‘ﬂ.n Phu Ward, Ha Tinh City, Ha Tinh Provine

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS (CONT'D)
BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS® RESPONSIBILITY

The Board of General Directors of the Corporation is responsible for preparing the consolidated financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Corporation for the year ended
31 December 2024 and its consolidated income statement and consolidated cash flows for the year in
accordance with Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting Regime and legal
regulations related to the preparation and presentation of consolidated financial statements.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the Board of General Directors is required to:

»  Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consitently;

= Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

= State wether appicable principles have been followed, subject 1o any material departures
disclosed and explained in the consolidate financial statements; and

*  Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate (o presume
that the Company will continue in business.

* Design and implement the internal control system an effective for the purpose of preperation
and presentation of the financial statements to limit risks and fraud;

‘The Board of General Directors confirms that the Corporation has complied with the above requirements
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The Board of General Directors is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept,
which disclose, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Carporation and to
ensure that the financial statements comply with Viemamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese
Caorporate Accounting System and other related legal regulations on preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial statements. It is also responsible for safegnarding the assets of the Corporation
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of Fraud and other irregularities.

OTHER COMMITMENTS

The Board of General Directors commits that the Corporation shall not violate any information
disclosure obligations in accordance with Circular Na. 96 2020/TT-BTC dated 16 November 2020 of
the Ministry of Finance on information disclosure in the securities market; Decree No. 155/2020/MD-
CP dated 31 December 2020 of Government and Circular No. 11620200TT-BTC dated 31 December
2020 of the Ministry of Finance which provides guidelines on corporate governance applicable to public
companies under Decree No. 155/2020/WND-CP,

For and an behalf of the Board of General Directors, j r,

e

- o

General Director
Ha Tinh, 25 March 2025

= Wl i
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Uw AUDITING AND COMSULTING COMPANY LIMITED

No: 286 /2024/UHY-BCKT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
Cin the consolideted financial statements of
Ha Tink Minerals And Traing Corperation — Joint Stock Compary
For the year ended 31 December 2024
To: Shareholders
Board of Management and Board of General Directors
Ha Tinh Minerals And Traing Corporation — Joint Stock Company

We have sudited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Ha Tinh Minerals And Traing
Carporation — Joint Stock Company (hereinafler referred to as the “Corporation™) which were
prepared on 25 March 2025 as set out on page 06 10 65, including the consolidated balance sheet as at
31 December 2024, the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year ended 31 December 2024 and the Notes thereto,

ibilities of the Boa i

Board of General Directors of the Corporation is responsible for preparing and presenting the
consolidated financial statements in a true and fair view in conformity with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System and the statutory requirements relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements, and for such internal contral as
the Board of General Directors determines is necessary o enable the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that are froe from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

ibiliti the A

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on pur
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards an Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonshle
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatemenl.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence ahout the amousite and disclosrcs
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditars' judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal conrol
relevant to the Corporation's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated finencial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectivencss of the Corporation's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting pelicies used and the reasonableness of
aceounting estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of he
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion,

Awudit Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respecis,
of the consolidated financial position of Ha Tinh Minerals And Traing Corporation - Joint Stock
Company as at 31 December 2024, as of the consolidated results of its operations and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in mccordance with Viemamese Accounting Standards, the
Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System, and the statutory requirements relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONT'D)
Emphasis matters

As stated Note Mo, 40 of the Notes to the Consalidated Financial Statements, which déscribes certain
financial indicators of several subsidiaries of the Corporation as of 31 December 2024, indicating the
existence of material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt on these subsidiaries™ ability to
continue as going concerns. However, the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024,
of these subsidiaries are still presented on a going concern basis and do not affect the Corporation’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024, This is based on the belief of
Board of General Directors of the Corporation and the subsidiaries’ Board of Directors that these
companies can continge their production and business activities, maintain sutficient cash flows to
meet debt obligations as they fall due, and sustain their going concern status for the next 12 months,
Additionally, the Corporation is developing a plan to divest from underperforming and loss-making
subsidinries.

Owr conclusions do not coneern these issucs of emphasis.

Other matters

The consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2023, of Ha Tinh Mineml and
Trading Corporation = JSC were audited by AASC Auditing Firm Limited under Audit Report No.

300324 005/BCTC.KT3 dated 30 March 2024, with a qualified opinion regarding doubts about the
aoing concern assumpiion of certain subsidianes and associates,

Bui Minh Duc Tran Thanh Tung

Andit Dircetor Auditor

Auditor's Practicing Certificate Auditor's Practicing Certilicate
Mo, 5586-2021-112-1 No, 4051-2022-112-]

For gned om behalf of

L/HY Anditing and Consulting Company Limited
Flanoi, 25th March 2025



HA TINH MINERALS AND TRAING CORPORATION CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=JOINT STOCK COMPANY For the year ended 31 December 2024
Mo 2 Wu Quang, Tran Phu Wand, Ha Tinh City, Ha Tinh

Frovine

Form No. B01-DN/HN
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
Ag at AT December 2024
ASSETS Code Mote 31122024 01012024
VND YD

A CURRENT ASBETS 100 T12,530, 737,469 626, 795,150,079
I. Cash and eash equivalents 10 4 99,902,019,376 67,080,047,701
1. Cash 11 78,432,146,314 49,915 443,925
2. Cash equivalents 112 21,469 873,062 17,164,603,776
II. Shori-term receivables 120 5 169,265,014.331 138,054,191, 458
3. Held=to-maturity investments 123 51 189,265 014,331 138,054, 191 458

II1 Short-term receivables 130 144,813,005,281 122,774,577,016
1. Short-term trade receivables 131 6 146, 591,458,041 131,021,408,828
2.  Short-term advances 1o suppliers 132 7 17,262 863 TH4 14,928 877 522
6. Other shori-term recefvables 136 5 25,755,341,976 19,229,502, 181
7. Provision for doubltful short-term 137 9 (44,796,568,500)  (42.405,011,515)

doubiful receivables
IV Inventories 140 10 262,467,102,844 258,481,393 354
1. Inventores 141 262,512,611,934 266,910,698,373
2. Provision for devaluation of 149 (45,509, 0907 (B.429.305,019)
mventores

V. Oiher current assets 150 36,002,505,637 A0 404, 970,550
1 Short-term prepaid expenses 151 11 22,176,035, 504 19,742,171,300
2. Vale-added tax deductible 152 11,086,756,184 18,093,286,040
3., Tox ond other receivables from 153 17 1,920 713,549 2,569,513 201

the State budpet

s AHAL W



CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the vear ended 31 December 2024

HA TINH MINERALS AND TRAING CORPORATION
= JOINT STOCK COMFPANY

MNa 2 Ve Quang, Tran Phu Ward, Ha Tinh City, Ha Tinh
Provwine

Form No. B01-DN/HN
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONT'D)
As at 31 Decembear 2024

ARSETS Code MNote 111272024 01012024

VND VD

B MNON-CURRENT ASSETS 200 1,394,275.984.204  1,420,147,761,467

I- Long-term receivables 210 6,131,%07,000 £,756,807,000

6. Orher long-term receivables 216 8 &, 131,807,000 5, 756,807,000

II. Fixed assets 220 SR2.912.414,243 633,524,797,004

1. Tangble fixed assets 221 12 576,690, 193,308 626,420,567,233

- Ciost 222 LE30 149041 340 1,534,856, 044, 199

- decumulated depreciation 223 (P82, 458 847 532)  [POE 436,376 066)

3. Intangible fived assets 227 13 6,222,220,435 7,104,229,771

= Cisf 225 22 B2T 392 247 22 827 392 247

- Accumulated depreciation 229 (16,605 171,812} (15723 162476}

I Investment property 230 14 69,473, 109,609 71,610, 465,951

- Cost 231 85,494 254 799 B5,494,254,799

- Accumulated depreciation 232 (16,021,145,190) (13,883, 7BR.R1E)

I Long-term assets in progress 240 13 411,0040,549,332 383,720,141,750

2  Construction in progress 242 411,000 849 333 383,720.141,750

IV Long-term investments 250 5 253,716, 706,364 252,495,395, 585

2. Investments in joint - veniure, 252 5.2 B,954,652 739 TATZ 711,492

associates

3. Investment in other entifies 253 5.3 247,439,088,500 247.439,088,500

4. Provision for lJong-term 254 (2,677,034,873) (2,416,404207)
mvestments

Y. Other long-term nssets 260 71,041,097,656 73,040,154,147

1. Loap-term prepaid expenses 261 1 71,041,007,656 73,040,154,147

TOTAL ASSETS 270 2.106.815,721,673  2,046,942,941,546



HA TINH MINERALS AND TRAING CORPORATION CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= JOINT STOCK COMPANY For the vear ended 31 December 2024
Mo 2 Vi Quang, Tran Phu Ward, Ha Tinh City, Ha Tinh

Provine

Form MNo. BO1-DNHMN
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONT'DY)
Az mt 31 December 2024

RESOURCES Code Note 21123024 0101 2034
VYND VIND
A LIABILITIES 300 866,368,092,921 §79,593,183,278
L Current liabilities 310 552,880,643,436 561,537,293,447
1, Short-term trade payables 311 16 215,247,787,355 200,933,074, 856
2, Shor-term advences from 312 20,282,736,319 16,062, 7T42,753
customers
3. Taxes and other payables to the 313 17 7,142,823 946 11,140,611,141
State budget
4. Paysbles to employees 314 A5,050.566,911 29,846 496,636
5. Shart-term accrued expenses 315 18 28,617,403,775 41,457,184,493
£, Short-term uneamed revenucs 318 20 Z. B85, 169,732 2.981,169,736
. Short-term other payables 319 19 106,344,401,576  100,313,313,217
10 Short-term loan and finance lease 320 21 124,631,165,664 138,656,240,861
. oblizations
11  Provision for short-term pavables 321 - 3,321,887,739
12 Bonus and welfare fund 322 12,660,588,158 16,724,572,015
Il. Non-current liabilities 330 313,487,449,485  318,055,889,831
1. Long-term trade pavables 331 78,927,000 -
6. Long-term unearned revenues 336 20 §,338,626,695 8,223, 796,423
7. Other long-term liahilities 337 19 BEO, 803,354 B51. 830,680
£. Long-term loans and finance 338 21 275,152,644, 819 277,150,607,001
lease obligations
11 Deferred tax labilitics 341 32,027,357,617 31,829,655, 727



HA TINH MINERALS AND TRAING CORPORATION
= JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Mo 2 Vu Quang, Tran Phu Ward, Ha Tinh Clzy, Ha Tink

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Provine
Form No. B01-DN/HN
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET {CONT'D)
As at 31 December 2024
RESOURCES Code Note 31122024 01/01/2024
VND VYND
B OWNERS' EQUITY #00 1,240,447,628,752  1,167,349,758,268
L Owners® equity 410 22 1,227.080,848,548  1,153,600,195,364
1. Issued share capital 411 1,101,135,914,618  1,101,135,914,618

= Ordinary shares with voting 41la
righits

1.  Share premium 412
5. Treasury stock 415
6. Foreign exchange differences 416
B. Deveclopment mvestment fund 41E
11  Retamed eamings 421
- Aecrmulated retained earnings 7210
brought forward
- Retained earnings for the 421b
current pariod
13 MNon-controlling interests 429
II. Other funds 430 s |
1. Fundmg source 431
TOTAL RESOURCES 440

Preparer

W A~

Bui Van Minh

MNguyen Duy Thanh

1,101, 135,914,618

4,(41,846,423
(40, 728,290)
{1,053,097,228)
39,177,238,445
(69,338,212,210)
(115,958 144,073)

46,619, 03] 5463

153,157,886,790

13,366, 780,204
13,366, 780,204

1, 101,135.914,618

4,047, Rd6, 423
(40,728,290)
(1,053,007.228)
36,307,.869,626
(106,824,944, 149)
(R0 860, 332 2900

{25, 064,411,859

120,123,334,364

13,659.562,904
13,659,562, 904

Chief Accountant

2,106,815.721.673 __ 2,046,942,941,546

Ha Tinh, 25 March 2025

General Director

T —
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HA TINH MINERALS AND TRAING CORPORATION

=JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Mo 2 Vi CQuang, Tren Phu Ward, Ha Tinh City, Ha Tinh

Provine

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2024

Form No. B02-DN/HN

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Items Code MNote Year 2024 Year 2023
YND VIND
1. Revenue from sale of goods and 01 25 1,463,311,871,24% 1,316,762,852,605
rendering of services
2. Leszs deductions 02 26 2, 757,840,099 1,640,496, 648
3. Net revenue from sale of goods 10 1,460,554,031,146 1,315,122,355 957
and rendering of services
4, Cost of goods sold 11 27 1,251,261,147,908  1,261,593,684,922
5. Gross profit from sales of goods 20 209,292,883,238 53,528,671,035
and rendering of services
. Financial income 21 28 26,806,071,938 21,553,B35,156
7. Fimancial expense e 25 16,62%,467,050 17,353,9200,714
In which: interest expense 23 13, 726 347 2559 T8, 554 29/ 105
8. Shares of profit of associates, joint- 24 1,481,941,247 [,765,110.,909
wentures
9. Selling expenses 25 3 37,112,840.804  26,659,427,412
10, General and administrative expenses 26 3l 91,600,617,185 70,454, 468,966
11. Operating profit 30 92,237,971,384  (37,620,179992)
12, Other come 31 30 7,433,392,050 7,075,328,151
13, Other expenses 32 32 1,655,239,619 1,386,346,324
14. Profit from other activities 40 5,778,152,431 5,688,981,827
15. Accounting profit before tax 50 98,016,123,815 (31,931,198,165)
16. miﬂm income tax 51 34 9,273,584,119 T
17. Deferred Income tax expense 52 35 197,701,850 2,917, 816135
18. Net profit after tax 60 88,544,837,806  (43,870,592213)
19. Met profit after tax attributable to &l 47,886,044 071 (25,827,611 ,8B82)
shareholers of the parent
20, Profft afier tax attrbutable o non- 62 40,658,793,735 (1B, 042 0B033]1)
controlling nterests
21. Basic earnings per share 70 36 423 235)
Z1. Diluted earnings per shame 71 36 423 235)
= Ha Tink, 25 March 2025
P Chief Accountant e irecto
reparer ccountan «’Sjmﬁ_ﬁﬁ‘wﬁ r
o KHOAMGEAN Yo
.arr{t:‘;: e
LR
Nguyen Duy Thanh Bui Van Minh Le Viet Thao

10
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HA TINH MINERALS AND TRAING CORPORATION CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
— HONT STOCK COMPANY For the vear ended 31 December 2034
Mo 2 Vo Quang, Tren Fhu Ward, Ha Tinh Ciy, Ha Tinh

Provlne

Form No. BO3-DNHN
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Applying indirect method)

For the year ended 31 December 2024
Items Code MNote Year 2024 Year 2023
YD VMDD
L Cash Mows from operating activities
1. Profit before tax ol 98,016,123,815  (31,931,198,165)

2. Adjustments for the items
Depreciation of tangble foed assets 0z
and mvestment propertics

Prowvisions

03

Foreipn exchange difference 04
(zain)/loss from revahiation of
monetary accounts denominated in

foreign currency

{Gain)loss from mwesting activities L

Interest expenses L

Crher adjustments 07
. Operating profit before changes in 08

wnrﬂi;g capital

Increage, decrease in receivables 09

Increase, decrease in inventories 10

Increase, decrease in payables 11
fexcluding interest payable, corporate
income tax payable)

Increase, decrease in prepaid expenses 12

Interest paid 14
Corporato mecome tox paid 15
Otther cash outflows for operating 17
activities

Net cash flows from operating 20

aciivilies

63,218,954, 188

(9,053,496,215)
(5.525,133,861)

(20,661,507,255)
13,726,347,259
(2,030,949 535)
137,690,338,396

(20,137,765,407)
4308 086,430
14,540,228,003

{434,807,704)
(14,717,503,719)
{11,935,182,955)

(9,553,977,635)

99,849,415, 418

65,677,602,147

(2,539,900,251)
(3,909,756,550)

(20,076,688,482)
16,554,291,105
6, 144,552,247
29,9]18,942,051

(1,837,660,386)
(4,411,687,456)
(38,131,736,689)

(4,3950]15,289)
{14,516,150,520)
(6,320,202,725)
(10,894.415,275)

(50,588,001 6,489)

11
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HA TINH MINERALS AND TRAING CORPORATION CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
= JOINT STOCK COMPANY For the year ended 31 December 2024
Mo 2 Vu Quang, Tran Phu Ward, Ha Tinh City, Ha Tinh

Provine

Form No., B03-DNHN
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONT'DY)
(Applyving indirect method)

For the year ended 3] December 2024
Ttems Code Mote Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
IL. Net cash flows from operating activities
1. Purchase and construction of fixed 21 (37,749,922,637)  (65,823,366,206)
assets end other long-term assets
2. Proceeds from disposals of fixed 22 442 192,000 1,868,116,609
assets and other long-term assets
3. Loans to other entiies and purchass 23 {114, 738,976.143) (138,054,191 458)
of debt instruments of other entities
4, Collection on borrowings and 24 83,528,153,270 174,039,389,601
proceeds from sales of debt
&. Proceeds from sale of investments in 268 - 1,000, GO0, 000
other entitics
7. Interest mcome, dividend and chares 27 20.816,393,273 19,439, 766, 165
of profits
Net cash Tows from investing 30 (47, 702, 168,237} (7530285, 199)
activities
TIT. Cash Mows from financing activities
1. Proceeds from issuing shares, 31 - 10,248, 000,000
receiving capital contributions from
OWIETS
3. Proceeds from borrowmgs 33 417.826,450,327 500,578,592.4356
4. Pavments to settle loan prmeipals 34 (433,849 487, 7061 (413,389,254,%61)
6. Dividends and profils paid to cwners 16 (3,623,600,911)  (20,9G6,384,552)
Ner cash flows from financing 40 (19, 646,638,290} TO,470,942,023
activities
Met increase in cash during the 50 AZ.500,616,891 18,352,640.835
period
Cash and cash equivalents at the il 4 &7, 080,047,701 44,817,6580316
beginning of the period
Effeet from changing foreign 61 321,354,784 3,909,756,550
exchange rate
Cash and cash eqguivalents at the 0 d 09 002,019,376 67, 080,047,701
end of the period
Ha Timh, 25 March 1025

Preparer Chief Accountant

Nguyen Duy Thanh Bui Van Minh

12
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HA TINH MINERALS AND TRAING CORFORATION CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= JOINT STOCK COMPANY For the year ended 31 December 2024
Mo I Vu Quang, Tran Phu Ward, Ha Tinh City, Ha Tink

Froving

MOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{These nodes form an integral par! of @ shoin'd be read in comfunction with the sccompanying consolidated fraacial siaiements)

Form No. BO9-DN/HN

1. BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS
1.1 STRUCTURE OF OWNERSHIP

Ha Tinh Minerals and Trading Corporation — Joint Stock Company (hereinafter o as “
Corporation™), formerly a state-owned enterprise under Ha Tinh province, was restructured into
a Joint Stock Company following Decision No. 1847/QD-TTg dated 11 October 2013, by the
Prime Minister approving the equitization plan of the Ha Tinh Minerals and Trading

Corporation.

The Corporation®s headquarters is located at No. 02 Yu Quang, Tran Phu Ward, Ha Tinh City,
Ha Tinh Province.

The Corporation's charter capital as registered is VIND 1,101,135,914.618 {One trillion, one
hundred one billion, one hundred thirty-five million, nine hundred fourteen thousand, six
hundred eighteen dong). As of 31 December 2024, the fully contributed charter capital is VIND

1,101,135,914,816, equivalent to 110,113,591 shares, with a nominal value of VND 10,000 per
share,

1.2 BUSINESS AREAS AND MAIN BUSIMESS INDUSTRIES
Business areas of the Corporation:
Mineral exploitation, construction materials, livestock farming, seaport services;
The main business areas of the Corporation include:

-  Exploitation, processing and trading various minerals and ores, including those contzining
radioactive materials;

= Manufacturing construction materials from clay; producing ceramic and porcelain products;
manufacturing cement, lime, and gvpsum; producing conecrete and products made from
cement and gypsum;

- Raising livestock such as buffaloes, cattle, pigs, deer, and poultry;
1.3 ACCOUNTING PERTOD AND BUSINESS CYCLE

The Corporation's normal production and business cycle is camied out within a period of no
muore than 12 months.

1.4  BUSINESS STRUCTURES

As at 31 December 2024, the Corporation has subsidiaries whose financial statements are
consolidated as at 31 December 2024 including:

13
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HA TINH MINERALS AND TRAING CORPORATION
—JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Mo 2 Vo Quang, Tran Phue Ward, Ha Tinh City, Ha Tinh
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the vear saded 31 Desembesr 2024

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'DY)
{These nates form an integral part of and should be read It confurciion with e accomparing consolidated fearcial starenemiz)

1. BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS (CONT'D)
1.4 BUSINESS STRUCTURES (CONT'IDY)
Subsidiaries:
No. Name Address Rate of | Voting Main business
Binefit ratia activitics
1 Thien Y 2 Joint Stock | No. 02, Vo Quang, 75,00% | 75,00% | Business of hotel and
Company Ha Tinh city, Ha restaurant services
Tinh province
2 Mitraco Trading Joint | No. 02, Vo Quang, T3.00% | T3,00%0 | General commercial
Stock Company Ha Tinh city, Ha business
Tinh province
3 Phu Loc commune, 30.95% | 30,95% | Production and
}":?:fgf::: Ef,}‘::ﬁi, Can Loc district, Ha treding of Manganese
Tinh province o
4 Transport and Thach Ha town, T8 44% | 79,44% | Transport and
Construction Joint Thach Ha district, Ha construction business
Stock Company Tinh province
3 5 Mebangfay distrct, 100% 100% | Producing and
E;::ii?in Compeny KFhammoun trading gypsum
province, Laos products
6 | Mitraco Brick Ky Tien commune, | 60,00% | 60,00% | Producing and
Packaging Joint Stock | Ky Anh district, Ha trading brick
Company Tinh provinee packages
7 Thach Vinh 51,28% [ 51,28% | Producing and
Mitraco Livestock commune, Thach Ha trading pig breeds
Joint Stock Company | district, Ha Tiah annd Jesnns piges
province
8 | Thien Loc Animal Thien Loc commune, | 60,64% | 60,64% | Producing and
Feed Joint Stock Can Loc district, Ha trading food, jewelry,
Company Tink province and poultry
o Ha Tinh Agriculture Hamlet 10, Duc Tho 58,70% | 58,70% | Producing and
and Forestry town, Due Tho trading pig breeds
Development Joint district, Ha Tinh and super lean pigs
Stock Company province
10 | Mitraco Mechanical Cam Xuwven fown, 63,83% | 63,83% | Construction and
and Construction Joint | Cam Xwuven district, mechanical
Stock Company Ha Tinh province engineering
11 | Laa - Viet Ky Loi commune, 53,00% | 53,00% | Seaport services
International Port Joint | Ky Anh district, Ha
siock Company Tinh province
12 | Thach Khe Iron Xuan Linh 91.85% | 91,85% | Production and
Materials and commune, Nghi trading of
Additives Joint Stock | Xoan district, Ha construction stons
Company Tinh province
13 | Mitraco Infrastructure | Ne. 02, Vo Quang, 100%% 100% | Construction wotks
Development and Ha Tinh city, Ha
Construction Tinh province
[nvestment Company
Limited

14
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HA TINH MINERALS AND TRAING CORPORATION
—JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Mo 2 Vi Quang, Tran Phu Ward, Ha Tinh City, Ha Tinh

Provine

CONSDLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Faor the year ended 51 December 2024

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT D)
{Thaae mmﬁ:-m-r an J.ru'.rg:lﬁ.flpaﬂ :y"m-pd':h::pﬁ:l' b read v aan‘l'lm:'.riuu with the atcompaaying mfﬁﬂd‘ﬁmjﬂi sterdemenls)

1. BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS (CONT'D)
1.4 BUSINESS STRUCTURES (CONT'DY)
Subsidiaries: (cont’d)
MNo. MName Address Eate of | YVoling Main business
Benefit ratip activities
14 | Mitraco Seeds and Thien Lo commune, 10H% 100% | Production and
Agricultural Materials | Can Loc district, Ha trading of seeds and
Company Limited Tinh province agricultural materials
15 | Mitraco Marine Food | Ky Trinh Ward, Ky 100% 100% | Processing and
Processing Company | Anh Town, Ha Tinh preserving meat and
Limited | meat products
16 | Lao Viet International | Vung Ang Economic | 53,00% 100% | Direct support
Legistic Company Zone, Ky Loi service activities for
Limited - Subsidiary of | Commune, Ky Anh waterwsy transport
Lao - Viet Tewn, Ha Tinh
International Porl Joint | Provinee, Vietnam
Stock Company
As of 31 December 2024, the Corporation has joint venture companies and other investrnent
companies including:
Associates amd joinf-veniures:
No. Mame Address HRate of | Voting Main business
Benefit ratio activities
1 | Ha Tinh Materials and | Ky Phuong 26,6T% | 16,67% | Production and
Construction Joint commune, Ky Anh trading of
Stock Company district, Ha Tinh construction
provinece materials
Investments in equity of other enrities:
No. Name Address Rate of | Voting Miuin business
Benefit ratio activities
| Huong Son Km 70 - National 19,75% | 19,75% | Production,
Hydropawer Joint Highway BA - Son transmission and
Stock Company Kim | commune, distribution of
Huong Son district, electricity;
Ha Tinh provinee
2 Thach Khe Iron Joint 64 Phan Dinh 9.03% 9,93% | Iron ore mining;
Stock Company Phung, Nam Ha Construction of
ward, Ha Tinh city, other civil
Ha Tinh province engincering works;
Wholesale of metals
and metal ores
3 Hoa Phat Mitraco Ma., 02 Vu Quang 1,08% 1,08% | Iron ore mining;
Mineral JSC Street, Tran Phu other metal ores 1ot
Ward, Ha Tinh City, containing iron; mre
Ha Tinh Province metal ores
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HA TINH MINERALS AND TRAING CORPORATION CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
{These mafes form an integral part of and sfowld be recd in confunctian with the accompanying conselidaied Taaecial siarenems)

1.

BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS (CONT'DY)

1.4 BUSINESS STRUCTURES (CONT'D)
Trvestrnents in eguity of other enities (cone’d)
No. Name Address Rate of | Voting Main business
Benefit ratio activities
4 Vung Ang Petroleurn | Mo, 417 Tran Phu, 10% 10% | Petroleum business;
15C Ha Tinh City, Ha Renting '
Tinh warehouses and
petrolenm ports
5 | Lam Hong Information | No. 33 Tran Phu 10%a 10% | Wholesale of
Technology JSC Street, Tran Phu compaters,
Ward, Ha Tinh City, peripheral devices
Ha Tinh Province and software
& Vinatex Hong Linh Mam Hong 1,25% 1,25% | Producing,
IsC Industrial - imparting and
Handieraft Cluster, exporting all kinds
Nam Hong Ward, of fiber, weaving,
Hong Linh Town, dyeing end garmemt
Ha Tinh Province products.
For information abour the Compemy's subsidiaries, foint ventures ond associales, see details in
Nove 5,
15 STATEMENT ON COMPARABILITY OF INFORMATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The comparative figuncs on the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 Decenibe
2024 are the figures on the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31 December 2023
have been audited.
2. BASIS FOR FREPARING CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
FISCAL YEAR
2.1 BASIS FOR PREPARING CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financizl statements include the financial statements of the Corporation and
of entities controlled by the Corporation (subsidiaries) for the year ended 31 December 2024.
Control is achieved when the Corporation has the power to govemn the financial and opersting
policies of an investee so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of operations of subsidiaries acquired or sold during the year are presented in the
consolidated income statements from the date of acquisition or up to the date of disposal.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared using accounting policies that are consistent
with those of the Corporation. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statenents
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with those of the Corporation and
subsidiares.

Significant balances, income and expenses, including unrealized gains or losses arising fom
intra-group transactions, are eliminated in the consolidation of the financial statements.
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KNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'IY

{Thate astes form an iniegral part of and showla be read i confunciion with the accompanying corsolidaled fTrancias statemenis)

3. BASIS FOR FREPARING CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
FISCAL YEAR (CONT'D)

2.1 BASIS FOR PREFPARING CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

The list of subsidiaries and associates consolidated in this report includes subsidiaries and
associates as presemted m Note 1.4,

Mon-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated balance sheet as a consolidated item in
the equity section. The non-controlling interest in the consolidated income statement of the
Corporation and subsidianies must also be presented as a consolidated consolidated item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

2.1  ACCOUNTING PERIOD AND ACCOUNTING CURRENCY

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared for the year ended from 01
January 2024 1o 31 December 2024,

The accompanying financial statements are presented in Vietnamese Dong (VND).

.3 STATEMENT ON COMPLIANCE WITH ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND ACCOUNTING
SYSTEM

The Corporation's consolidated financial statements are prepared and presented in compliance
with the requirements of Vietnamese Accounting Standards and the current Vietnamese
Enterprise Accounting System and legal regulations related to the preparation and presentation
of consolidated financial statements.

The Corporation applies the Enterprise Accounting System issued under Circular Mo
0N ATT-RTC dated 77 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance, Circular No.
332016/TT-BTC dated 21 March 2016 of the Ministry of Finance on amending and
supplementing a number of articles of Circular No. 2002014/ TT-BTC and Circular MNo.
20272014/ TT-BTC guiding the method of preparing and presenting consolidated financial
statements,

. 3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Corporation in the prepamation of these
scparate financial statements are as follows:

3.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The pccounting policies uwsed by the Corporation to prepare the conselidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 are applied consistently with the policies
applied to prepare the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023,

32 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with Vietnamese
Accounting Standards requires the Board of General Directors to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and the disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements as well as the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the financial vear. Actual consolidated income resu lts
may differ from those estimates and assumptions.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

These modes form an ifegral par! of ond sheald be recd in confunciion wilh the accompanytag conmolidated Tparciz! sanemens)

3.

33

34

3.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONT'D)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash at banks and short-term, high liguid
investments with an original maturity of no more than three months that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and that are subject to an msignificant risk of change in value,

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

The exchange rate used to convert transactions in forgign currency is the actual exchange rate
at the time of the transaction. The actual exchange rate for transactions in foreign currency is
determined as follows:

For receivables: the buying rate of the commercial bank where the Company designates the
customer to make payment at the time the transaction occurs;
For payables: the selling rate of the commercial bank where the Company plans to transact
at the time the transaction occurs;

- For asset purchases or expenses paid immediately in foreign currency (not through payable
accounts): the buying rate of the commercial bank where the Company makes the payment.

The exchange rate used to reveluate the balance of foreign currency items at the end of the fiscal
year is determined according to the actual exchange rate of the Commercial Bank at the end of

the accounting period.

Exchange rate differences arising during the period from foreign currency transactions are
recorded in financial income or financial expenses. Exchange rate differences due to revaluating
foreign currency items at the end of the accounting period after offsetting the increase and
decrease are recorded in financial income or financial expenses.

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

Held-to-maturity investmaent

An investment i& classified as held to maturity when the Corporation has the intention and ability
to hold it to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments include: bank term deposits, bonds and other
investments.

Held to maturity investments are recorded from the date of acquisition and are initially measared
at the purchase price and expenses related to the purchase of the investments. Interest income
from held to maturity investments after the acquisition date is recognized in the Statement of
Profit or Loss on an accrual basis. Interest eamed before the Corporation holds is deducted from
the cost at the date of acquisition.

Held-to-maturity investments are determined at cost less provision for doubtful debts.
Provision for bad debts of held-to-maturity investments is made based on current regulations.
Investments in associates and joint-veniures

Associates: An associate is an entity over which the Corporation has significant influenc: but
does not have control over its financial and operating policies. Significant influence is the power
1o participate in the financial and opersting policy decisions of the investee but does not entail

control over those policies.
18
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
{These nodes form an imtegral pard af and shou’d be read in conjunction with the accompanying cosselidated faaecial sianeiemi)

3.

A5

e

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT"I))

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (CONT'D)

The operating resulis, assets, and liabilities of associates are included in the consolidated
financial statements using the equity method. Investments in associates are initially recognized
in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at cost and adjusted for changes in the Corporation's share of
the net assets of the associates after the acquisition date. Losses of an associate excesding the
Corporation’s interest in that associate (including any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Company’s net investment in the associate) are not recognized.

Tnvestments in equily of other entities

Investments in other entitics include; investments in capital instruments of other entities that do
not have control, jeint control, or significant influence over the invested party. The inftial book
value of thesa investments is determined at cost, After initial recognition, the value of these
investments is determined at the original cost minus provisions for investment devaluation.

Frovision for investmeni price decling is made of the end of the period specifically av follows:

- For leng-term investments (nod classified as trading securities) and without significant
impact on the invesiee: if the investment iz in listed shares or the fair value of the invesoment
is reliably determined, the provision is made based on the market value of the shares; if the
investment's fair value cannot be determined at the reporting date, the provision is made
based on the Financial Statement at the time of provisioning of the investes.

- For investments held to maturity: based on the recovery ability to make provision for

irrecoverable debts according to the provisions of law.
ACCOUNTS RECETVABLE AND PROVISION FOR BAD RECEIVAELE DERBT

Receivables inclode: receivables from customers, advances to sellers snd other receivables at
the reporting date.

The classification of receivables into trade receivables and other receivables is carred out
according o the following principles:

- Trade receivables reflect commercial receivables arising from purchase-sale transactions
between the Corporation and buyers wha are independent entities of the Corporation:

Uther receivables reflect non-commercial receivables, not related to purchase - sale
tranzactions,

Provision for irmecoverable debts is made for the following: overdue receivables stated in
economic contracts, loan agreements, contractual commitments or debt commitments and
receivables that are not yet due for payment but are unlikely to be recovered. In particular, the
provision for overdue receivables is based on the principal repayment period according to the
original sales contract, not taking into seccount debt extensions between the parties and
receivables that are not vet due for payment but the debtor has gone bankrupt or is in the precess
of dissolution, missing, absconding or the expected level of loss that may occur.
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3.

7

3.8

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

INVENTORIES

Inventories are initially recorded at cost, which includes: purchase costs, processing costs, and
other directly related costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their location and condition at
the time of initial recording. A fier the initial recording, at the time of preparing the Consolidated
Financial Statements, if the net realizable value of the inventories 15 lower than the original cost,
the inventories are recorded at net realizable value.

Net realizable value is estimated based on the selling price of the inventories less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs of selling the products.

The value of inventories is determined by the weighted average method.
Inventories are accoumtad for by the perpetual irventory method.
Method of determining the value of work in progress at the end of the period:

Work-in-progress costs are collected eccording to actual costs incurred for each type of
unfinished product.

The Corporation’s invemiory devaluation reserve is set up sccording to current accounting
regulations. Accordingly, the Company is allowed to set up a devaluation reserve for ohsplete,
damaged, and substandard inventories and in cases where the original cost of inventories is
higher than the net realizable value at the end of the accounting period.

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Tongible fixed asset coat includes the purchase price (less trade discounts or rebates), taxes and
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for use.

Expenses incurred after the initial recognition of tangible fixed assets are recorded as an increase
in the original cost of the asset when these expenses certainly increase future economic benefits,
Expenses incurred that do not satisfy the above conditions are recorded by the Corporation as
production and business expensas in the vear,

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated weful
lives, Tangible fixed assets are classified into groups of assets with similar characteristics and
purposes in the company’s production and business activities. The number of depreciation years
for each type of tangible fixed asset is as follows:

Type of asvets Time of use
- Buildings and structures 03 - 40
- Machinery and equipment 03 - 10
= %Yehicles and transmission equipment 03 =10
= CHvee equipment 02 =05
- Dther assets 08
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3.

3.9

310

.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
INTANGIBLE FINED ASSETS

Intangible fixed assets are recorded at their original cost, reflected in the Balance Sheet according to
the indicators of original cost, accumulated depreciation, and residual value. The ariginal cost of
intangible fixed assets includes all costs that the Corporation must spend to acquire the fixed rssets
up to the time the asset is pat into a state of readiness for wse. Expenses related to intangible fixed
assets arising after initial recognition are recorded as production and business expenses in the period
unless these expenses are associated with a specific intangible fixed asset and incresse the economic
benefits from these assets.

Recognition of intangible fixed assets and depreciation of fixed assets are implemented in
accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standard No. (4 - Intangible fixed assets, Circular No.
200/2014/TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance puiding the accounting
regime for enterprises, Circular No. 45/2013/TT-BTC dated 25 April 2013 Guiding the Regime
of Management, Use and Depreciation of Fixed Assets and Circular No, 1472016TT-BTC
dated 13 October 2016 on amending and supplementing a number of articles of Circular No.
45/2013/TT-BTC and Circular No, 2820017/ TT-BTC dated 12 April 2017 on amending and
supplementing a number of articles of Circular No. 45/2013/TT-BTC and Circular No.
1472016TT-BTC of the Ministry of Finance.

When intangible fixed assets are sold or disposed, the original cost and accumulated depreciation
are written off and any gain ar boss anising from disposal s recognised as income or expense in the
year,

The Corporation’s intangible assets include land use rights, software, right 1o issue, patent

copyrights and other assets. Intangible assets are amaortized using the straight-line method over
estimated useful lives,

Type of assets Time of use fyears)

- Land use rights 20

- Copyrights, patents 20

- Computer software 02 -05

- Orther asseis 10
INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Construction in progress reflects costs directly related (including related interest expenses in
accordznce with the Corporation’s accounting policies) to assats under construction, machinery
and equipment being installed for production, leasing and management purposes as well as costs
related to repairs of fixed assets in progress. These assets are recorded at historical cost and are
not deprociated,

INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Investment properties are initially recognized at cost.

For investment real estate held for price appreciation, before 01 January 2015, depreciation is
calculated using the straight-line method similar to other assets, From 01 January 2015,

depreciation is not performed.
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3.

3.11

311

J.13

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
INVESTMENT PROFERTY (CONT'D)
For investment real estate for operating lease, it is recorded at historical cost, accumulated

depreciation and residual value. In which, depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method with the estimeted depreciation period as follows:

Lype of assels Time of use (vears)
- Buildings and structures 40

Transfers from owner-occupied property or inventories (o investment property are made only
when there is a change in use, such as when the owner ceases to use the property and begins to
lease it to another party or at the end of the construction phase. Transfers from investment
property 1o owner-occupied property or inventories are made only when there is a change in
use, such a5 when the owner begins to use the property or develops it for sale. Transfers from
investment property to owner-occupied property or inventories do not change the cost or
carrying amount of the property at the date of transfer.

OPERATING LEASES

Oiperating leases are leases of fixed assets in which substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset remain with the lessor. Payments made under operating leases are charged
to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

PREFAID EXPENSES

Expenses incurred in relation to the results of production and business activities of many
accounting periods are recorded as prepaid expenses to be gradually allocated to the results of
business activities in the following accounting periods,

The calculation and allocation of long-term prepaid expenses into production and business
expenses of each accounting period is based on the nature and level of each type of expense to
select a reasonable allocation method and criteria.

The Corporation’s prepaid expenses include:

- Prepaid land costs include prepaid land rent, including amounts related to leased land for
which the Corporation has received a land use right certificate but are not eligible for
recognition as intangible fixed assets under Circular No. 45/2013/TT-BTC issued by the
Ministry of Finance on 25 April 2013 guiding the management, use and depreciation of
fixed assets and other costs incurred in connection with securing the use of leased land.
These costs are recorded in the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis owver
the term of the land lease contract.

- Tools and instruments include assets held by the Corporation for use in the normal course
of business, with the historical cost of each asset being less than VND 30 million and
therefore not eligible for recognition as fixed assets under cument regulations. The
historical cost of tools and instruments is allocated using the straight-line method over a

period of (1] vear,

Compensation and site clearance costs for the Warkers' Housing project are allocated 1o
the results of business operations using the straight-line method over a period of 40 years
from 01 April 2022,
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.13

3.14

315

.16

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

FPREPAID EXPENSES (CONT'D)

- The cost of sows and breeding pigs is allocated to the results of production and business
activities using the straight-line method over 24 months to 36 months from the time of

CCCUImeTce

- The cost of renting commercial pig pens and farms of individuals is allocated to the results
of business activities using the straight-line method correspending to the rental period.

- Other prepaid expenses are recorded at the original cost and are allocated using the straight-
line method over their useful lives from 06 months to 40 years,

LIABILITIES

Liabilities are amounts payable to suppliers and other entities. Liabilities include trade payables
and cther payables. Liabilities are not recorded as lower than payment obligations.

The classification of liabilities is carried out according to the following principles:

- Trade payables include commercial pavables arising from transactions of purchasing goods,
services, assets and the seller is an independent entity from the buyer;

Other payables include non-commercial payables, not related to transactions of purchasing,
selling, providing goods and services.

ACCRUED EXPENSE

The Corporation's accrued expenses are actual expenses that have arisen in the reporting year
but have not been paid due to lack of invoices or insufficient accounting records and documenis,

recorded in the production and business expenses of the reporting vear,

The pre-accrual of production and business expenses in the vear must be calculated strictly and
there must be reasonable and reliable evidence of the expenses that must be pre-accrued in the
year, to ensure that the amount of expenses payable recorded in this account is consistent with
the amount of actual expenses incurred.

PROVISIONS FOR PAYABLES

Provisions are recognized when the Corperation has a present obligation (legal or construcstive)
arising from a past event, and the settlement of this obligation s likely to result in an outflow of
economic benefits, with the value of the obligation being reliably estimated.

The provision for liabilities incurred is recognized as an expense in the production and business
costs for the relevant accounting period. Any difference between the provision for liabilitiss set
up in the previous year that was not fully utilized and the provision for liabilities in the curent
year's report is reversed, reducing the production and business costs in the period, except for the
excess difference of the provision for warranty obligations in construction works, which is
reversed into other income in the accounting period.
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3.19

3.20

3.11

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
LOANS AND LIABILITTES FOR FINANCE LEASES.

Includes borrowings, excluding borrowings in the form of bonds or preferred shares with a term
requiring the issuer to repurchase at a certain time in the future..

The Corporation monitors loans in detail by each debtor and classifies short-term and long-term
loans according to the repayment period.

Expenses directly related to loans are recorded in financial expenses, except for costs arising
from borrowings specifically for the purpose of investment, construction or production of
uncompleted assets, which are capitalized in accordance with the Accounting Standard on
Borrowing Costs.

BONDS ISSUED
The Corporation issues regular bonds for the purpose of long-term borrowing.

The carrying amount of the bonds is reflected on a net basis, calculated as the face value of the
bonds minus {-) the bond discount plus (+) the bond premium (if any).

The Corporation issues regular bonds for the purpose of paying contractors for the construction
project of Berth No. 3 at Vung Ang Port, Ha Tinh.

BORROWING COSTS

Bomowing costs are recognized as production and business expenses in the year when incurred,
except for borrowing costs directly related to the investment in construction or production of a
work-in-progrees asgat which are included in the value of that asset (capitalized) when meeting
all the conditions specified in Vietnamese Accounting Standard No. 16 "Borrowing costs™. In
addition, for consolidated loans serving the construction of fixed assets, investment real estate,
interest is capitalized even when the construction peried is less than 12 months,

DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenue includes revenue received in advance such as: the amount of money that
customers have paid in advance for ane or more accounting periods for asset leasing. Unesrned
revenue is transferred to sales revenue and service provision at the amount determined in
aceordance with each fiscal vear.

OWNER'S EQUITY
Ohwner's eguity is recorded according to the actual capital contributed by the owner.

Share capital surplus reflects the difference between the par value, direct costs associsted with
the issuance of shares, and the issue price of shares (including cases of re-issuance of tressury
shares) and can be a positive surplus (if the issue price is higher than the par value and direct
costs associated with the issuance of shares) or 4 nepative surplus (if the issue price is lower
then the par value and direct costs associated with the issuance of shares).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES (CONT D)

OWNER'S EQUITY (CONT'DY

Treasury stock is the stock that the Corporation bought back before the effective date of the
Securities Law 2019 (01 January 2021) but has not been canceled and will be reissued within
the period prescribed by the law on securities. Treasury stock purchased after 01 January 2021
will be canceled and adjusted to reduce equity.

Asset revaluation difference is reflected in the following cases: when there is a State decision
on asset revaluation, when equitizing State-owned enterprises, and in other cases as prescribed

by law.

Retained earnings reflect the business results (profit, loss) after corporate income tax and the
Company's profit distribution or loss handling situation.

Dividends payable to shareholders are recorded as payable on the Corporation’s Balance Sheet
after the dividend announcement by the Corporation’s Board of Directars.

The Corporation sets aside the following funds from the Corporation’s net profit after corporate
mcome tax upon the proposal of the Board of Directors and approved by shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders:

- Development Investment Fund: This fund is set aside to serve the expansion of the
Corporation's operations or in-depth investment
Barmus and Welfare Fund and Executive Board Bomus Frnd- This fund 15 set aside to reward,
encourage materially, bring common benefits and improve the welfare of employees and is
presented as a payable on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Dividends payable to shareholders are recorded as pavables on the Corporation’s Balance Sheet
after the dividend payment notice of the Corporation’s Board of Directors and the dividend
record date notice of the Viet Nam Secunties Depaository and Clearing Corporation.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Corporation and can be reliably measured.

venwe fram the sale of finished ard merchandise

Eevenue from the szle of goods and finished goods is recognised when all five (5) of the
following conditions are met:

= The Corporation has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership
of the goods;

- The Corporation no longer retains control over the goods as the owner of the goods or
retains management of the goods;

- The amount of revenue can be measured reliably. When a contract stipulates that the buyer
has the right to return the purchased goods or products under specific conditions, revenue
is recognised only when those specific conditions no longer exist and the buver it mot
entitled to retum the goods or products (except in cases where the customer has the right to
return the goods in exchange For other poods or services);

- The Corporation has obtained or will obtain economic benefits from the sale transacion;
and

= The costs related to the sale transaction can be measured reliably,
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
REVENUE RECOGNITION (CONT'D)

EVERLE rendari EEFVICES

Revenue from a transaction involving the rendering of services is recognised when the outcome
of the transaction can be measured reliably. In the case of a transaction invelving the rendering
of services that involves several vears, revenue is recognised in the year based on the results of
the work completed at the closing date of the Financial Statements of that vear. The results of a
transaction involving the rendering of services are recognised when all four (4) of the following
conditions are met:

- Revenue can be measured reliably; When the contract stipulates that the buyer has the right
to return the purchased service under specific conditions, revenue i3 recognised only when
those specific conditions no longer exist and the buyer is not entitled to return the service
provided;

- The economic benefits associated with the transaction will probably flow to the buyer;

The stage of completion of the work at the closing date of the Financial Statements can be
measured reliably; and

- The costs incurred for the transaction end the costs to complete the transaction can be
measured reliably.

Fingncial income

Revenue arising from interest, dividends, profits distributed and other financial income is
recognized when bath (2) of the following conditions are satisfied:

- [t is possible to obtain economic benefits from the transaction;

- Bevenue is determined relatively reliably.

Dividends and profits distributed are recognized when the Corporation {s entitled 0 recedve
dividends or is entitled to receive profits from capital contributions.

Revenue deductions

Deductions from sales revenue and service provision arising during the period include: Trade
discounts and sales discounts

Trade discounts, sales discounts, arising in the same period of consumption of products, poods
and services are adjusted to reduce the revenue of the arising period. In case products, goods
and services have been consumed in previous periods, and revenue deductions arise in the
following period, the Corporation shall record a reduction in revenue according to the following
principle: if they arise before the time of issuance of the Financial Statement, the Corponation
shall record & reduction in revenve on the Financizl Statement of the reporting period (previous
period), and if they arise after the time of issuance of the Financial Statement, the Corpontion
shall record a reduction in revenue of the arising period (next period).
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3.15

3.16

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'DY)

COST OF GOODS S0LD

Cost of goods sold in the period is recorded in accordance with the revenue generated in the
period and ensures compliance with the principle of prudence. Cases of material loss exceeding
the norm, costs exceeding the normal level, lost inventory afler deducting the responsibility of
the relevant collective or individual, etc. are fully and prompily recorded in the cost of goods
sold in the period.

FINANCIAL COSTS

Expenses recorded in financial costs include:

= Expenses or losses related to financial investiment activities;

- Borrowing costs;

- Provisions for investment |osses in other cntities, losses arising from selling foreign

curmencies, exchange rate losses,

The above amounts are recorded at the total amount arising in the vear without offeetting against
hinancial activity revenue.

COHPORATE INCOME TAX
Current corporaie income fax expense

Current carperate income tax expense is determined based on taxable income in the pericd and
corporate income tax rate in the current accounting perind.

Deferred corporate income tax expense is determined based on deductible temporary
differences, taxable temporary differences and corporate income tax rate,

Corporate income fax rate

In the accounting year ended 31 December 2024, the Corporation is subject to a corporate
income tax rate of 20% for business activities with taxable income..

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss after tax attributable to
sharcholders owning common shares of the Corporation (afier adjusting for the Bonus and

Welfare Fund and the Executive Board Bonus Fund) by the weighted average number of
commaon shares outstanding during the period.
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3.28

d,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

RELATED PARTIES

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.
Related parties of the Corporation include:

- Enterprises that directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries control, or are
controlled by, or are under common control with the Corporation, including parent
companies, subsidiaries and associates;

Individuals who directly or indirectly own voting power of the Corporation that gives them
significant influence over the Corporation, key management personnel of the Company,
and close family members of these individuals;

Enterprises in which the above individuals directly or indirectly hold a significant part of
the voting power or have significant influence over these enterprises.

In considering each possible related party relationship for the preparation and presentation of
the consolidated financial statements, the Corporation pays attention to the substance of the
relationship rather than the legal form.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

A segment is 2 distinguishable component of the Corporation that is engaged sither in providing
related products or services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a
particular economic environment (geographical segment). Each segment is subject to risks and
rewards that are different from those of other segments,

Segment information is preparcd end presented in accordance with the accounting policies
applied to the preparation and presentation of the Corporation”s financial statements in order to
enable users of the financial statements to understand and evaluate the Company's operations as
a whole.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31122024 01/01/2024

VND VNI

Cash on hand 5,489,494, 184 3,523,019674

- Cash at banks 72,942,652,130 46,392,424 251
- Cash equivalents (*) 21,469,873,062 17,164,603,776
Total 99.902,019,376 67,080,047,701

{*) The Corporation’s cash equivalents include term deposits of less than 3 months at the Joint
Stock Commercial Bank for Foreign Trade of Vietnam — Ha Tinh Branch, with interest mtes

ranging from 1.5% - 1.8%/ year.
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5. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS
5.1 HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENT

S 22024 1AL F2024
Histo rieal ensi Rook value Histordeal cost Book valuo
VYND VI VINDY VNI
Short-term 169,265,014,331 169,265,014,331 138,054,191,458 138,054,191,458
- Term deposits () 169,265,014,331 169,265,014,331 138,054,191 458 138,054,191,458
Long-term = =i = &
Tatal 1649 14,331 169,265,0 14,331 HEIIS*"I?] ﬁﬂ 135&19] A58

(i) As at 31 December 2024, held-to-maturity investments include term deposits with original maturities ranging from 06 - 13 months at Joint Stock
Commercial Bank for Foreign Trade of Vietnam - Ha Tinh Branch, Jaint Stock Commercial Badk for Invesiment and Development of Vietnam - Ha Tinh
Branch, and Ho Chi Minh City Development Joint Stock Commercial Bank - Ha Tinh Branch, enjoying interest rates from 2.8% - 5.6%/vear.
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(These notes form an injegral pars of and shoud be read in comjmeciion with the arcompanying consolidated fnameiol statements)
5. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (CONT'D)

Sl INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

The value of investment in Associates using the equity method is as follows:

311272024 o202
Historical cost Share of Valuc using the Histarical cost Share of  Value using the
profitloss in equity method profitToss in equity method
Associnles Associntes
VD VYND VND VD WMND VND
= Investments in jolot - 8,214,281,603 740,371,136 B, 054,652,739 %.214,281,603 (741,570,111} T4TL, 711,492
ventum, associates
+ Ha Tinh Materials and B.214.281,603 40,371,136 8.954,652,739 B.214.281.603 (a1 570,11 1) TA4T2 711,492
Construction Joint Stock
Company
Total 8.214,281,603 740,371,136 8,954.652,739 5.214.281,603  (741,570,111) _ 7.472,711.492
3
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 3| December 2024

5. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (CONT'D)

a3 INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY OF OTHER ENTITIES

31122014 01012024
Historical cost Provision HReasonable Historical cosat Provision Reasonable
VND VMND YHND YMD VNI YD

Investments In others 247, 439,088,500  (2,677.034,875) (*)  147.429,088,500 (2,416,404,407) [*)
entities
Thach Khe Iron Joint 179,659,088,500  (2,471,217,393) (*)  179,659,088,500 (2,210,586.925) (*)
Stock Company
Huong Son Hydropower 56,400, (000,000 = 135,360,000,000 56,4060, 000,000 - 03,624, 000,000
Joint Steck Company
[Stock code: GEM)
Vung Ang Petroleum Joint 9,004),000,000 - 10,625,000, 000 0, (00,000,000 - 10,625,000, 00
Stock Company (Stock
code; POV)
Hoa Phat Mitraco Mmeral 1,080,000,000 - ) |, R0, 00, 000 - *)
Joint Stock Company
Vinatex Hong Linh Joint 1,000, 000, 000 (205,817.482) ) 1, B0, (R0, 000 (205,B17,.482) ™*})
Stock Company
Lam Hong Information 300,000,000 - (*) 300,000,000 - *)
Technology Jomt Stock
Company
Total 247.,439,088,500 (2,677,034,875) (%) 247.439,088,500  (2,416,404,407) ™)

The fair value of the investment in Huong Son Hydropower Joint Stock Company and Vung Ang Petroleum Joint Stock Company is determined based on
the closing price of these two securities on the Upcom exchange as of 31 December 2024,

{*}As of 31 December 2024, the Corporation has not yet determined the fair value of these investments for disclosure in the separate financial statements

because :'I-"iulm.un::m- Accounting Standards and the Viemamese Enterprise Accounting System currently do not provide guidance on how to caleulate fair
value using valuation techniques. The fair value of these investments may differ from their carrying amounts,
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6. TRADE RECEIVABLES

IS 2024 LR R e e
Balance Provision Balance Provision

VMDD VD YIND YIND
Short-term 146,591 458,041 (42, 135, 185,4240) 131,021,408,528 (29.824,491,902 )
- Viet Hai Trading and Transport Services Company 11,988,534,826 . 25 380,919,670 £

Limited
= Binh Nguyen Transport Trading Company Limited 21,056,197,500 - 12,264,727,750 -
- Mam Phuong Investment and Trading Company 13,682,923 500 - - -
Limited
- Hoanh Son Group Joint Stock Company 1,121,816,307 . 514,619,633 3
- Mekong International Transport Joint Stock Compary 4, 183,454,627 - B.957,532,444 =
- Lao KaiYuan Mining Co., Ltd 1,049,689, 8T8 . 1,600,870,667 g
- Others 03,508,841, 403  (32,135,185,420) 82,302,738,664  (29,824,491,002)
Total 146,591, 458,041 (32,135,185 420) 131,021,408,528 [29.824,401,902)
T ADVANCES TO SUPPLIERS
Al/12/2024 D1/01/2024
Balonce Provision Balance Provision

VND VND VND VND
Shari-term 17,262,863,764 (7,959,244,249) 14,928,877,522 (7,902,596,111)
- Thanh Tam private enterprise 2,532,360,595 (2,532,360,595) 2,442,983,005 (2,482,983,005)
- Thach Dvinh Enterprise 1,095.272.051 (1,095,272.051) 1,095,272 051 (1.095,272,051)
= Diher objects 13,635, 231118 (4,331,611,603) 11,350,622,376 (4,324,340,965)
Total 17,262,863,764 (7,959,244,249) 14,928 877,522 (7,902,596,111)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT"D)

(These noles forn an integral part of and hould be read in conjurction with the eccompanying consalidared financial satements)

8 OTHER RECEIVABLES

31/1252024 maLsznzd
Balance Provision Balance Provision
YD VNI YD YHD
Short-term 15,755.341,976 {4,7T02,138,831) 19,229 302,181 (4,677,923,501)
- Recemvable from equitization - - G, 002, 408 -
- Recewable from interest on deposils and loans 2.423,733,152 = 3,452,657,.405 -
- Recemvable from social insurance 376 - 35,969,726 -
- Advances to employees 6,859, 366,050 (3,109,564, 792) &, 120,047 802 (2,B37,204,833)
- Bhor-term collateral & deposh 1,878, 781,650 - 2,243,039,250 -
- Deheus 2024 purchase rebate receivable 9,815,219,950 - - =
- (Other receivables 4, T80, 240,708 {1,592,574,039) T.313,585,590 (1,840,718,669)
Long-term 6,131,807,000 - 5, 756,807,000 -
- Long-term collateral & deposit 6,131, 807,000 - 5, 756,807,000 Z
Total 31,.BR7, 148976 {4,702,138,831) 24,986,109,181 (4,677,923,502)

g o WE R L o
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9. BAD DEBT

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2024

3111272024 01/01/2024
Balance  Recoverahble Provision Balanee Recoverable Provision
Aminumnt amount
VND VND VND YND VND VND
Thanh Tam private enterprise 2,482,983,005 - (2,482,983,095)  2.482,983,095 - (2,482,983,095)
Luang Prabang 1,941,568,642 - (1,941,568,642) .94 1,568,642 = (1,941,568,642)
Mitraco Food food store 1,236, 186,015 = (1,236, 186,018) 1.236,186,018 = (1,236,186,01K8)
Thach Dinh Enterprise 1,095,272,051 = {1,095,272,051) [.005,27T2.058] = (1,095272.051)
BUCKABOO.,LLC 1,068,720,000 - (1,068,720,000) 1, 068,720,000 - (1,068,720,000)
Fam Ha Tinh Agricultural Products 5 - 1.000,000,000 - {1,000,000,000)
Import-Export Production and
Trading Company Limited
Management board of Thach Khe - -
iron mmine G2, 329 000 (002,329, 000) 612,329,000 (602,329,000
Others 66, 311,014,234 29.941,504,760 (36,369,509,694)  62.024,135,293  29,046,182,584 (32,977,952,709)
Total T4, 738,073,260 19,941,504,760 (44,796,568,500)  71,451,194,099  29.046,182.584 (42.405.011,51
34
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2024

1. INVENTORY

IR DLAOLE0E4
Balance Provision Balance Provision
YD VD VND VD
- Raw materials 43, 090,775,076 (45.509,090) 35,364,671,270 (45,500,090

= Instrument & tools
= Cost for work in progress

4,795, 128,283
162,499, 195,327

3,553,557,969
163,628,561,333

=

{8,383,795,929)

- Finished goods 49,377,562,680 - 62,133,235,582 -
- Goods 2,749,950,568 - 2,229.952.219 -
Total 162.512,611,934 (45,509,000) 266,910,698,373 (8.429,305,019)

TR N ol J———
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11.

FREPAID EXPENSES
AV122024 0L/01/2024
YIND VYMND
Sho rt-term 2r 176,035,504 19,742,171 309
= Tools and supplies issued for uses 671,894,980 355,305,603
= Land cover expenses 19.951,.%63,682 17,239,762,039
= Farm rental expenses 126,000,003 263,696,129
= Fixed assef repair expenzes - 38,474,089
- Others 1,426,176,839 1,844,933, 449
Long-term 71,041,097,656 T3,040,154,147
= Tools and supplies izsned for uses 2.352,070,445 2,683 ,414,724
- Land clearance expenses for worker 29,165,452,945 29.551,750,335
housing projects {*)
- Sows, breeding pigs 13,576,871,192 16,473,995,694
- Fixed asset repair expenses 5438412272 4,058, 863,218
- Mine expenses: exploratory drilling, 2,800,361 522 3,384,925,499
determination of mme reserves, hiring
mining consultants
- Cost of renting barns, farms, and land 6,934, 462,645 2,915,075,038
Investment expenses for worker housing 1,216, 543 859 2,096 023 173
- projests (*)
- La.“,d clearance CHPEHSES I,E&grg43,:qﬂ? I,g i E,Eﬂl,-ﬂ-l?
- Oihers 7.678,079 369 9,957,901,039
Total 93,217,133,160 92,782,325,4506

{*) The enst of land clearance for the project of the pilot housing area for workers and
employees at Vung Ang Economic Zone: VND 30,324,345,115, to be amortized over 480

marnths,

- Investor: Ha Tinh Minerals and Trading Corporation - J5C

- Investment purpose: Rental business,

= Location: Lot TT4b, DT3 , Vung Ang Economic Zone, Ky Anh District, Ha Tinh Province.

=  Land use area: 16 ha
- Total investment; YIND 1,182,356,303,000.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

(Theze notes farm an futegral part of and should be read in confunciion with the cocompanying consolidoted Framcinl sialements)

1%, TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Buildings Machinery Vehicles and Management
und structures and equipment  transmission devices equipment ey Total
YND YND YND YND VND YND

COST

01/01/2024 979.637,925,488  448,542,291,338 B4,347,498,858  9,726,330,632 12,602,897,883  1,534.856,944,199

= Purchase during the period 4,766,132,239 3614 181,795 1, 104,448,000 . 650,494,343 10,131,256,377

- Completed construction - - 499,190,450 - - 490,190,450

investment

- Liguidation, sale (151,932,727) (405,567,081) - (100,090,908} (2,588.333,200) (3,245,923,916)

- Other decreases (1,585,993,752)  (1,308,180,818) (153,2%1,200) (45,000,000} - (3,092,425,770)

311252024 082,666,131,248  450,442,725.234 85,793,886,108  9,581,239,724  10,665,059,026 1,539,149,041,340
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

01/0172024 (527,636,169,069) (302,162,712,570) (65,009,319.389) (7,760,892,300) (5,967,273,548) (908,436,376,966)

- Charge for the period (37.952,898,107) (17,853,611,358) (2,918,226,492) (364,233,593) (1.110,618,9300 (60,199,588 4%0)

- Liquidation, sale 151,932,727 376,952,107 - 100,000,908  2,455,716,411 3,084,692,153

= Other decreases 1,585,993,743 LJ08, 1RD.E18 153,251,200 45,000,000 - 3,092,425,761

311272024 (563,851,140,706) (318,331,191,003) (67,774.304,681)  (7,980,035,075) (4,522,176,067) (962,458,847,531)
NET BOOK VALUE

01/01/2024 452,001,756,419 146,379,578, 768 19.338,169,469  1,965438,242  6,735,624,335 626,420,567,233

31/12/2024 418,814,990,542  132,111,534,231 18,019,581,427 _ 1,601,204,649  6,142,582,959 576,690, 193,508

The remaining value of tangible fixed assets used as morigage, pledge, or loan security as of 31 December 2024 is VND 105.882,114,112 (as of 01
January 2024, the amount is VND 47,421,228,734).

= The original value of tangible fixed assets that have been fully depreciated but are still in use as of 31 December 2024 is VND 430,671,945.576 {as of
01 Januury 2024, the amount is YIND 418,758,421,703),
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HA TINH MINERALS AND TRAING CORPORATION
—JOINT STOCK COMPANY

No 2 Vu Quang, Tran Phu Ward, Ha Tinh City, Ha Tinh Provine
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
{These nodes form an inlegra! parl of and should be read tn confunction with the accompanying consolidated financlal sistenenis)

13 INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2024

The land use rights Copyright, Computer Others Total
valae palent s fhwares
YND YND YND ¥ND VYND
COST
/012024 16,283,520,000 1,554,577,357 1,993,908,290 2,995,386,600 22,827.392,247
311272024 16,283.520.000 1,554,577,357 1,993,908,290 2,995, 386,600 21,827,392.247
ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION
01/01/2024 (9,566,568,000)  (1,167,299,586) (1,993,908,290)  (2,995,386,600) (15,713,162,476)
- Charge for the period (814, 176,000) (67,833,336) - - (BB2,009.316)
1712024 llﬂéﬂﬂ_.:Tﬂl[ﬂ“E 51,!35,131lmt (1,993,908, 200) {2,905 3186, 600% i]ﬁéﬂalfllﬂl 1!
NET BOOK VALUE
01/01,2024 6,716,%52,000 387,277,771 - - 7, 104,229.771
31122024 5,906, 776,000 319,444,435 - = 6,222,220,435

- The remaining value of intangible fixed assets used as mortgage, pledge, or loan security as of 30 June 2024 is VND 5,5902,776,000
(as of 01 January 2024, the amount is VND 7,124,040,000),

- The historical cost of fully depreciated bt still in use intangible fixed assets as of 31 December 2024 is VND 6,043 872,247 (as of
01 January 2024, the amount iz VND 4,939,294 890).
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HA TINH MINERALS AND TRAING CORPORATION CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
— JOINT STOCK COMPANY STATEMENTS
Mo 2 %u Quang, Tran Phu Ward, Ha Tinh City, Ha Tinh Provine For the yvear ended 31 Decsmber 2024

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
{Thase nodes form an imiegral part of and showla be read in confuncion with the accompamying corsolidmed Faoncial matements

14. INVESTMENT PROFPERTY

Buoild and structures Total
YIND VIND
COST
01/01/2024 BS, 494,254,799 B5,494,254,799
31/12/2024 85,494,254,799 85,494 254 799
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
01/01/2024 {13,853,788,818) {13,853,788,518)
= Charge for the period (2,137,356,372) {2,137,356,372)
3171272024 {16,021,145,190) {16,021,145,190)
NET BOOK VALUE
01/01/2024 71,610,465,981 71,610,465,981
317122024 69,473, 109,609 69.473,109,609

Investment real estate is 4 blocks of $-storey houses for rent under the Pilot Housing Project for
workers and laborers to rent in Vung Ang Economic Zone.

15, CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

3171272024 01012024

VND VND

Long-term construction in progress costs 411,000,849, 331 383,720,141,750
- Berth 3 (1) 397,458,233,064  375,624,789,235
= Renovating Beta powder factory (2) B,431, 789,115 2.226,936,500
= Raizing high quality cows (3) 1, T40 0k, 40y 1,740, (Wi, (e
= Ban Tung mne project 1,358,B595.481 1,358,895.481
= 15.9 hectares storage vard . 1,272,279,862
- (Others 2,010.931.6T2 1,406, 240,672
Total 411,000,849,332  383,720,141,750

(1) Vung Ang - Ha Tinh Port Terminal No. 3 Project i built in Ky Loi Commune, Ky Anh
Disirict, Ha Tinh Province by Lao - Viet Intemational Port Joint Stock Company - a subsidiary
of the Corporation as the investor, The total investment is VNI 999,905,371,000,

- The investment objective is to exploit the potential of logistics, seaport and martime
transport services, meeting the neads of import and export of goods through the pont and
surrounding areas.

- The project is divided into 2 phases: phase 1 with a ial investment of YIND
597,462,314,000 is expected to be completed in 2018; phase 2 with a total investment of
VND 402,443 060,000 is expected to be completed in 2020,

As of 31 December 2024, the construction investment project for Berth No. 3 at Vung AngPort
has been approximately 20% completed, with a total disbursement of VND 391,932,799 406,
including VND 275,319,529,436 for construction and installation. Phase 1 of the project is
expecied to be completed and put into operation in the first quarter of 2025.
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HA TINH MINERALS AND TRAING CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

= JOINT STOCK COMPANY STATEMENTS

Nod Va

Tran Phu Ward, Ha Tinh City, Ha Tinh Provine For the year ended 31 December 2024

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
{Thare moter form on iaeegral part af and sheuld be read in confunetion with e ascompesypiag consolideted faasell saementy

15.

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS (CONT'D)

According to Resolution No. 79/NQ-HPQT dated 05 September 2022 of Ha Tinh

Minerals and Trading Corporation - JSC on approving the imvestment project policy at Viet Lao
Company Limited: investing in renovating and upgrading the quality of Beta gypsum powder
products with the investor being Viet Lao Company Limited - a subsidiary of the Corporation.

The investment objective is to complete the production process of Beta gypsum powder,
standardize input materials before firing so that the product has comsistent quality
throughoum the production process..

Total investment: 346,940 USD. Capital mobilization plan: From the development
investment fund of Viet Lao Company Limited and loan capital from Lao - Viet Bank..
Time to prepare the plan: 02 months.

Time to negotiate and sign economic contracts: 01 month.,

Time to install equipment and transfer technology: 06 months.

Asof 31 December 2024: The project is still ongoing..

Land clearance costs in Ky Anh area are one of the land clearance costs for the high-

quality beef cattle breeding investment project. Project details are as follows:

Investor: Ha Tinh Minerals and Trading Corporation - ISC.
Investment purpose: Production and trading of high-quality beef cattle,

Location: Cattle farms in Cam Xuyen district and Ky Anh district, Ha Tinh province.
Scale:

At the Carporation: {500 breeding cows, regularly fattening 2,000 beef cattle.

Satellite farming: 5,000 households signed breeding contracts and 400 beef cattle farming
mradels,

Products: female breeding cattle, beef cattle and liquidated cartle ( 10% of the total herd)
Total mvestment: VNI 230,430,909 000,

By 31 December 2024: The project has been completed and partially implemented, while the Ky
Lam area is still being implemented.
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HA TINH MINERALS AND TRAING CORPORATION
—JOINT STOCK COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE TO SUPPLIERS

Shor-term

For the year ended 31 December 2024
No 2 Wu Quang, Tran Phu Ward, Ha Tinh City, Ha Tinh Provine
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(Theze noies form an integral part of and sheuld be read in confuncion with the aceompanying consolidated financial satesients)
Ji/122024 0012024
Balance Amount that can Balance Amount that ean
be setthed be settled
YD VNI ol D] YND
215,247,787, 355 215247, TRT,ASS 200,933,074,856 20,933,074, 856
- Lao Viet Transport and Trading Company Limited 31,888, 243,50 31,BR8, 243,579 32,418, 701,959 32.418,701,959

- Phu Xuen Construction and Consulting Joint Stock
Company

- Hong Ha Nutrition Joint Stock Company

= Branch of Deheus Company Limited in Vinh Phuc

= Truong Son Kham Muon Transport Company Limited

- TL Animal Feed Jont Stock Company

- Ket Phat Thinh [nvestment - Trade - Service Joint
Stock Company

= JLAMGSU ZHEMGCHANG CEREAL OIL AND
FEED MACHINERY

- Others

Total

30,591,058,827

30,591.058,827

30,591,058,827

30,591,058,827

41,145,541,403 41,145,541,403 40,677,652,783 40,677,652.783
19,261,217,550 19,261,217,550 | 2,806,833,700 12,806,833,700
15,606,286,110 15,606,286, 110 . F
2,613,005,324 2,613,005,324 4,772,871,824 4,772,871 824
2,155,910,000 2,155,910,000 2,155,910,000 2,155,910,000
1,183,967,660 1,183,967, 660 1,183,967, 660 1,183,967,660
70,802, 556,902 70,802,556,902 76,326,078,103 76,326,078,103
215,247,787,355  215,247,787,355 200,933,074,856 __200,933,074,856
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HA TINH MINERALS AND TRAING CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—JOINT STOCK COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2024

No 2 Vu Quang, Tran Phu Ward, Ha Tinh City, Ha Tinh Provine

17. TAXES AND OTHER PAYABLES TO THE STATE
01/01/2024 Payable during Payment during 31122024
the period the period

VNI VMND YD VMDD

Taxes and other payables to the State
- Wale add tax payable 1,559,391,829 19,514, 880,131 19,856,314,329 1,217,957,631
= VWalue added tax on mported poods - 29,767,310,552 20.767,310,552 -
- Excme duly 20,037,868 287,097,287 279,054,821 BE, 080,334
- Export/Import tax - 16,237,686,403 16,237,686,403 -
- Corporate income tax 5,844,106,920 9,271,584,119 11,935,182,955 3, 182,508,084
- Personal mcome tax 135,752,776 Tdd 827,043 747,113,803 131,466,016
- Rﬁll:m.r[:: tax 2,047,225 000 Q039,490,909 0.837.113,689 1,849, 606, 220
- Real estate tax, land rent E1,806,820 1,797,129.770 1,775.328,974 103,697,616
- Environment tax 51,958,056 735,032,170 716,237,485 70,752,741
= Others 29 382,923 259,745,671 289,128,594 -
= Fees, charges and other payable amounts 712,854,940 161,234 671 375,334,316 408,755,304
11,140,611,141 B7.818,018,726 91,815.805,921 7,142,833 946

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

{These roles form an integral part of and showld be read in confuncton with the accompanying consolidared finencial stalements)
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HA TINH MINERALS AND TRAING CORPORATION CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—JOINT STOCK COMPANY For the vear ended 31 December 2024
Mo 2 Vu Quang, Tran Phu Ward, Ha Tinh City, Ha Tinh Provine

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONT'D)
(These notes farm an integral part of and should be read in confunction with the accompanying consolidated financial statements)

17, TAXES AND OTHER PAYABLES TO THE STATE (CONT'D)

01/01/2024 Payable during Payment during 311272024
the: period the perind

VI YIND YMND VND

Taxes and accounts receivable
- Excise duty 1,635,734 2454553 518,819 -
- Value add tax payable 126,326,127 BZ,013,432 00,186,431 133,500,124
= Ciorporate income @y |, 265,984, 904 607,563,705 - 1.362.421,199
- Personal income tax 72,139,152 81,890,714 40,958, 085 31,206,523
= Resource tax 2,289 360 4,904 640 2,615,280 -
= Environment tax 220,416,709 - = 22041 6,709
- Others 176,721,215 45,931,273 51,280,450 182,070,392
!éﬁ'EIlSlSIIl]l Maﬁﬁﬂé]'ﬂ' 185,859,065 1,929,713,949

The Corporation's tax settlement is subject to examination by the tax authorities, Since the application of tax laws and repulations to various types of

transactions is susceptible to varying interprefations, the tax amounts presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements may be subject to change at the
discretion of the tax authorities,
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HA TINH MINERALS AND TRAING CORPORATION

— JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Mo 2 Vi Quang, Tran Phu 'Ward, Ha Tinh City, Ha Tinh Provine

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
ETATEMENTS
Far the wear ended 31 December 2024

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

(These motes form an integral part of and should be read in conjuncrion with the accompanying consalidaied financiol sialémems

18.

19.

SHORT-TERM EXPENSES

Shori=term

Loan mierest expenses

Costs for dredging and mamtaming the
water area in front of wharfs No, 1 and
No. 2

Cogts for repairing and upgrading internal
roads

Envionmental rembursement costs
Salary costs during leave

Remuneration costs for the Board of
Directors and Supervizony Board
Oithers

Total

OTHER PAYABLES

Short-term

=

Trade union fee

Social msurance

Health msurance

Unemployment insurance

Receive deposits and bets

Dividends and profits must be paid
Must pay capital contribution o Iron
Thach Khe

Han Coc Ha Tink Indusirial Joint Stock
Clompearry

Van Loi Company Lintined

Ha Tinh Iron and Steel Joinr Stock
Compary

Pavablz to Lao Company for Vung Ang
port services (%)

Logn principal must be paid

+ Loagn interest must be paid

Other short-term payvables

Long-term

Receve deposits and beis

Total

31/122024 oi/o1/2024
VND VND
28,617,403,775 41,457,184,493
21,605,449,469 22,596,605,929
- 6,543,560,482

2.901,053,539

6,495,032,539

1,442,681 248 1,221,570,063

- [, 157,967,324

- 546,000,000

2.668.219.519 2,896,448, 156
28.617.403,775 41,457,184,493
31/12/2024 01/0172024
VIND VYD
106,344,401,576 100,313,313,217
487,060,438 478,760,012
43,673,830 1,632,426,686

- 230,117,290

- 102,478,620

5,500,000 54,500,000
11,803, 846,000 0.837.631,911
15,800,000,000 15,800,000,000
o, SO0, 000, 000 &, 800, 000 0Ol
&, D0, 000, 000 &, OO, 00, Qo0
3, 0600, 000, 000 2,000,000 000
71.137,946,606 64,992, 354795
33,000, 000, 000 53,000,000 000
15 137,946,608 11,992 354705
7,065,465,682 7,195,043903
889,893,354 851,830,680
BE9, 893,354 851,830,630
107,234,294.930 101,165,143,897
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HA TINH MINERALS AND TRAING CORFORATION

= JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Mo 2 Vi Quang, Tran Phu Ward, Ha Tinh City, Ha Tinh Provine

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

For the vear ended 31 December 2024

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
{There nates foem an inegral pae of snd rhowld b read fn confunction with the accompanying consalidated finanefal safementt

19.

OTHER PAYABLES (CONT'D)

{*) Phase 2 capital contnbution of Lao Vung Ang Port Services Company (Lao Sharsholder)
from 2017. Due to changes in the capital contribution ratio to the Company according to the
Agreement between the Government of the Lao People's Democratic Republic and the
Government of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam, the capital contribution has not been agreed

upon.

According to the Resolution of the 2019 Extraocrdinary Shareholders’ Mesting, Lao-Viet
International Port Joint Stock Company - a subsidiary of the Corporation, handles the amount

of money of Lao shareholders as follows:

- Lao-Viet International Port Joint Stock Company manages and monitors the amount of
money that Lao shareholders have transferred to the account but have not completed the

procedures to increase the charter capital;

- Lao-Viet Intenational Port Joint Stock Company will fully refund all interest on deposits

to Lao shareholders..

DEFERRED REVENUE

Shori-term

=  Hevenue received m advance from
warehogse and premises rental

Long-term

=  Revenue received in advance from
wanchouse and premises rental

Total

AA22024 DlAa12024
YD YIND
2,885,169,732 2.981,169,736
2,885,169,732 2,981,169,736
5,338,626,695 8,213,796,423
5,338,626,695 8,223,795,423
8,223,796,427 11,204,966,159
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HA TINH MINERALS AND TRAING CORPORATION

= JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Mo 2 Vo Cluang, Tran Phu Ward, Ha Tinh City, Ha Tinh Provine

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2024

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

{These redes form an infegral part of and showld be read in confunction with the accompamying consolidated fimamcial statements)

11. LOANS AND FINANCIAL LEASE DEBT

Contents

Short-term loans and llabilities
Shori-term borrowings

- Joint Stock Commercinl Bank for Foreign
Trade of Vietnam - Ha Tinh Brench

- LAOVIETBANK - Savannakhet

= Joind Stock Commercinl Bank for Investmient
and Development of Vietham - Ha Tinh

- Ha Tinh Investment and Development Fund

- Bormow from individuals
Long-term loans ard debis are die

= Jomt Stock Commercial Bank for Foreign
Trade of Vietnam - Ha Tinh Branch

- YWietnem Development Bank - Ha Tinh

- LAOVIETBANE - Savanmakhet

- Bosrow from mdiviuak

Long-term loans and labilities

Long=term foan

- Wiztnam Development Bank - Ha Tiah
- LAOVIETBAMEK - Savannnkhet
- Bank for Agriculiure and Rural

Dralmary bomdy

- Phu Xuan Construction and Consulting Joint

Stock Cosnpany

= i Hiep Company Limited

ol In il period 31024
Bulnnce Amonnt that Addition Repayvinent Balance  Amowont that can
can he seliled b settbed
VD VNI YD YD VHND VD
138,656,240,861  138,656,240,861 #19,642,203,490 433,667, 278,687 124,631,165,664 I24,63 1,165 664
114,058, 558, 437 114,058, 558,437 414,330 887 H27 17 052 761, 705 T 33T 682 460 T 337 ald 460
74,679 188,437 V4,679, 1RE,437 340,715,083, 164 346,358,330, 167 GR035.941,434 0,005,041 434

17,339, 370,040 17,339, 370,000 1, THE, SHE &HG3 56,250,217 628 25 877,741,035 25, K77, 741,035

- 3,004,216,000 3,004,2 16,000 -
1k, 2040, (KK, 000 [ b, 20000, Q0 o0 . 3, CIH, CHORD, DR o 2000, Q0 DO o, 200,000 000
12,740,000,000  12,740,000,000 5,824,000,000 &, 340,000, 000 12,224,000,000 12,224,000,000
23,697,682 424 23,697,682, 424 530,315 663 I3, 714,514,892 I3, 203 483, 195 13,203 485, 105
12,854 352 249 12,804 352 249 T894 514 892 4,999 837 357 4,900 817,357
G, 163,330,175 6, 163,330,175 4, BOD, 00,000 &, 620, 000, D00 6,343,330,175 6,343,330,175
N : 510,315,663 = 510,315,663 510,315,663
4 G0, 000, 000 A4, 640,000, 00 - 3, 200,000,000 1, R0, W, TR 1 kst 1 000 DY
2TTA30,607.000 IT77,150,607,001 3,494, 562,500 S492 514 682 275,152,644 819 275,152 644,819
774,607,001 17, T4, 607,081 340, 562, 500 592 5204 882 15, 716,644,879 15, 716,644,810
15,020,000,001 | 5,020,000,001 - 4,800,000,000 10,220,000,001 10,220,000,001
= = 3494 562, 500 G2, 524 6HE 2. B02.03T.B1E 2, B02.037 B1H
2,604 807 000 2,694 607,000 . = 2,694, KT, (KD 2,684 607 000
259, 436,000,000 259,436,000, 000 - - 259,436,000, 000 259, 436,000,000
197 836,000,000 197, 836,000,000 - 197, 836, 000, [ 197, 836,000,000
61,600,000,000  &1,600,000,000 - 61, 600,000,000 G1,600,000,000
415,806,847 862 _ 415,506,847,862 423,136,765,990 439,159,603 369 399,783,810, 453 399,783,810,483
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HA TINH MINERALS AND TRAING CORPORATION CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- JOINT STOCK COMPANY Faor the year ended 31 December 2024
Mo 2 Vu Quang, Tran Phu Ward, Ha Tinh City, Ha Tinh Provine

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
{These notes form ar integral part of and should be read in confunction with the accompamying consolidated financal satements)

11.

LOANS AND FINANCIAL LEASE DEBT (CONT'D]

(1) Shori-term Loan from Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Foreign Trade of Vietnam — Ha Tinh Branch under the following contracts:

1. No. THI3/WNHEKHDNM between Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Foreign Trade of Vietnam — Ha Tinh Branch and Mitraco Livestrock Joint Stock
Company.

- Credit limit: VND 30,000,000,000;

= Interest rate: As per the Bank's notification from time to time;

= Loan term: 05 months;

- Purpose of Loan: Business operations;

- Security: The loan is secured by the following morzaee contracts:

+ Mortgage Contract No I5/2516TC/VCB, Ht dated 23 March 2015, No 2040201 T/TC/KHDN dated 24 October 2017, and No. 2041/201 7/ TC/KHDN
dated 24 October 2017, covering land-attached assets, machinery, and equipment at two high-quality pig farming centers owned by Mitraco Livestock Joint
Stock Company, located in Thach Vinh Commune, Thech Ha District, and Ky Phong Commune, Ky Anh District.

+ Morigage Contract No. 277/19%TC/KHDN dated 08 January 2018, securing inventory and pigs in the farming process.

+ Mortgage Contract No 38X/ 19 TC/KHDN dated 08 July 2019, securing the right to coolect accounts receivable of Mitraco Livestock Joint Stock
Company.

- Balance as of 31 December 2024: WND 29.041,317,933

1.2 Loan Contract No. 25/24/MNH/KHDN dated 28 August 2024 between Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Foreign Trade of Vietnam — Ha Tinh Branch
and Ha Tinh Agro-Forestry Development Joint Stock Company:

- Credit limit: VND 23,000,000,000 if the Owner’s Equily in the most recent quarterly financial statement is at least VND J0,000,000,000; VHD
21,000,000,000 if the Owner's Equity in the most recert quarterly financial statement is less than VND 30,000,000,000.

- Interest rate: The loan interest rate is variable and subject to the Bank's notification from time to time.

- Purpose of Loan: Working capital supplementation for the Company’s business operation plan.

- Contract Term: 12 months from the contract signing dato.:

- Loan Security method: Secured assets include assets at the livestock centers in Phu Loc Commune and Thuong Nga Commune, Can Loc Distric under
the following contracts: Morigage Contract No. | TTC/2009/KHDN dated 20 September 2017, securing land-attached assels; Morigage Contract No, 17TC/
20010VKHDN dated 20 September 2017, securing machinery and equipment; Morigage Contract No. 2B87/ 19 TC/KHIDN dated 06 January 2019, seCuring
revolving inventory.

- Balance as of 31 December 2024: YND 25,000,000,000

47

A Il e m, Fal -



21.

HA TINH MINERALS AND TRAING CORPORATION CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—JOINT STOCK COMPANY For the year ended 31 December 2024
No 2 Vu Quang, Tran Phu Ward, Ha Tinh City, Ha Tinh Provine

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These notes farm an insegral part of and should be read in conjunction with ihe accompanying consolidated financial statements)

LOANS AND FINANCIAL DBET (CONT'D)

1.3, Credit Line Agreement No. 10/24/NH/KHDN dated 21 March 2024 between Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Foreign Trade of Vietnam — Ha Tinh
Branch and Thien Loc Animal Feed Joint Stock Company:

- Credit limit: VND 16,000,000,000 from 21 March 2024 to 30 May 2024 and VND 15,000,000,000 from 31 March 2024 onwards. If the Company's
Financial Statement/ Preliminary Report continue to show losses in the first six months of 2024, the loan limit shall not exceed VND 14,000,000,000 from
no later than 31 October 2024,

- Interest Rate: Determined in each specific credit agreement based on the prevailing interest rate policy;

- Purpose of Loan: Working capital supplementation for the Company’s business operation plan;

- Contract Term: Up to 12 months from the contract sighing date;

- Loan Security Method: The loan is secured by the feed mill, pig farming center, automobiles, inventory, accounts receivable, ete., per the security
agreements between the Company and the Bank:;

- Balance as of 31 December 2024: VIND 14,994,623,500

1.4. Project Loan Contract No. 09/6010/NHNT between Joint Siock Commercial Bank for Foreign Trade of Vietnam — Ha Tinh Branch and Mitraco Brick
and Tile Joint Stock Company

- Credit limit: VND 17,000,000,000;

- Logn Term: 72 months from the first disbursement date

- Interest Rate: As per the Bank's notification from time to time:

- Secured Assets: As specified in Mortgage Contract No. 01/2009/HBTC dated 12 January 2009;

- Purpose of Loan: Investment in the Dong Mai - Ha Tich Brick and Tile factory project.

(*) According to Asset Auction Purchase Contract No. 01/HD-MBTS dated 25 March 2020, the Bank has liquidated all land-attached assets of the Dong
MNai — Ha Tinh Brick and Tile factory to recover the debl. The total amount recovered by the Bank from the asset liquidation is VND 18,346,718.947.

{Z) Short-term Loan from LAOVIETBANK - Savannakhet under the following Contract:

Credit Contract between LAOVIETBANK — Savannakhet and Viet Lao One Member Limited Liability Company
- Credit limit: VIND 30,000,000,000;

- Interest rate: As specified in each Promissory Note:

- Purpose of Loan: Business operations;

- Beourity: The loan is seoured under the Company’s pledge and morigage contracts;

- Balance as of 31/12/2024: VND 29,190,094,516.
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HA TINH MINERALS AND TRAING CORPORATION CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= JOINT STOCK COMPANY For the year ended 31 December 2024
No 2 Vu Quang, Tran Phu Ward, Ha Tinh City, Ha Tinh Provine

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

(These nofes form an integral part of and should be read in confunction with the accompanying consolidated fingncial statements)

21.

LOANS AND FINANCIAL LEASE DEBT (CONT'IY)

{(3) Short-term Loan from Ha Tinh Investment and Development Fund under the following Agreement:

Credit Loan Contract No. 017201 1/HBTD-DP between Ha Tinh Investment and Development Fund and Ha Tinh Minerals and Trading Corperation -JSC
- Loan Amount: VIND 25,000,000,000; Interest Rate: 0%;

= Loan Term: 36 months;

- Purpose of Loan: Equity contribution 1o Thach Khe Iron Joint Stock Company as per Decision No. 2874/QD-UBND dated 31 August 2011 of Ha Tink
Provincial People's Committee;

= Loan Security: Unsecured loan;

- Balance as of 31/12/2024: VYND 4,200,000,000.

(4} Loan from Vietnam Development Bank — Ha Tinh Branch under the following Contracts:

4.1. State Investment Credit Contract Ne. 03/201SHDDTDDDT-NHPT between Vietnam Development Bank — Ha Tinh Branch and Ha Tinh Minerals and
Trading Corporation, including Amendment Contract No. 01/2020/HBTBT-NHPT and No. 017202 VHDTDBT-NHPT

- Loan Amount: VIND 41,600,000,000; - Interestt: 8,55%,

= Loan Term: %6 months:;

- Purpose of Loan: Investment in construction and equipment for the pilot housing project for workers and laborers in Yung Ang Economic Zone, as per
the approved investment project;

- Loan Security: Future-formed asscts associated with the Pilot Housing Project for Workers and Laborers in Vun g Ang Economic Zone, as per Mortgage
Agreement No, 027201 S/HBTCTS-NHPT dated 16 December 2015:

- Balance as of 31/12/2024: VND 15,020,000,001.

4.2, Statement Investment Credit Contract No. 01/2009/HPTDBT-NHFT between Vietnam Development Bank — Ha Tinh Branch and Mitraco Brick &
Tile Joint Stock Company, including Amendment Contract No. 0272016/HPTDDT-NHPT

- Loan Amount: VIND 15,000,000,000; - Interest: 10,2% per vear;

= Loan Term: 13 years from the date of first disbursement under the Promissory Note;

- Principal Repayment Period: 12 years from February 2010;

= Purpase of Loan: Construction of the Dong Nai - Ha Tinh Brick & Tile Factory with a capacity of 25 million bricks per year;

- Loan Security: Land Use Rights over 114,565 m® in Ky Tien Commune, Ky Anh District, Ha Tinh Province and all post-investment assets attached to the
tand, eluding mueschincry, cquipment, factory, and auxi linry facilities,

- Balance as of 31/12/2024: VND 1,543,330,176.
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HA TINH MINERALS AND TRAING CORPORATION
—JOINT STOCK COMPANY

No 2 Vu Quang, Tran Phu Ward. Ha Tinh City, Ha Tinh Provine

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the yvear ended 31 December 2024

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These notes farm an ntegral part of and showld be read in conjunction with the accompanying consolidated financial siatemeris)

21. LOANE AND FINANACIAL DEBT (CONTD)
{5} Long-term loan from Vietnam Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development = Ha Tinh Branch has been frozen, pending a resolution
decision from the competent anthority
() Short-term loans from individuals, as detailed below:
No. Name Contract No. Interest Loan Parpose Collateral Balance as of 31
rate Term December 2024
Shori-term Laans for Individuals 12. 2240040000
1 Mrs, Than Thi Quynh Trang 01/ HEVT 7% 06 months | Business operations | Unsecured Loan [ 000,000,000
2 | Mrs. Nguven Thi Huyen 02HEVT T4 U6 months | Business operations | Unsecured Loan 500,000,000 |
3 | Mrs. Than Thi Nghi O3 HEVT T 12 months | Business operations | Unsecured Loan 2,000,000,000
4 | Mrs, Npuyn Thi Khanh Chi 24112023 HEVV 5. 8% 06 months | Business operations | Unsecured Loan [ 2000, 00 D00
5§ | Mr. Ngo Duc Mam 02,1 1. 20237 HEWVY 5,8% 06 months | Business operations | Unsecured Loan S0, e, D
L6 | Mr. Mguyen Quang Hung 03.11.2023/HBVV &.8% 06 months | Business operations | Unsecured Loan 1, 000,000,000
7 Mrs. Truong Thi Huong Tram 09112023/ HEVY B.8% 06 months | Business operations | Unsecured Loan [, 000,000,000
B | Mr. Tran Van Phong 21.11. 2023/ HBYVY 5.8% 06 months | Business operations | Unsecured Loan 500,000,000
9 Mr, Tran Van Quy 22,1 1. 2023 HEVY B85 06 months | Business operations | Unsecured Loan SO0, 00, D0
10 | Mrs. Ho Thi My Xuan 0% 12 months | Business operations | Unsecured Loan 24,000,000
11 | Mr. Yo Yan Hai 12% (2 months | Business operations | Unsecured Loan 1 00,000,000
12 | Mr. Le Ba Trong OI/HEVT 10% 12 months | Business operations | Unsecured Loan 200,000, G0
13 | Mrs. Nguyen Thi An 22HDVT va 02/FPLHD 8% - 0% 03 months | Business operations | Unsecured Loan 1,500, 000,000
14 | Mrs. Than Thi Thuy 2ZAMHDVT va 02/PLHE 10% 06 months | Business operations | Unsecured Loan 1,604,000, 000
15 | Mrs. Huynh Thi Huong 0&HBVTCN 9% 12 months | Business operations | Unsecured Loan 2000, CHR0, (MO
Maturing Long-term Loans for Individuzls 1,440,000,000
| | Mrs. Nguyen Thi Tam 15’HDTD 9% - 129% | 12 months | Business operations | Unsecured Loan 330,000,000
2 | Mrs, Nguyen Thi Tam 16/HBTD 9% -12,9% | 12 months | Business operations | Unsecured Loan §70,000,000
3 | Mrs. Nguyen Thi Tam 06HETD 9% - 12,9% | 12 months | Business operations | Unsecured Loan 240,000,000
50
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HA TINH MIMEBRALS AND TERAING CORPORATION CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—JOINT STOCK COMPANY For the year ended 31 December 2024
No 2 Vu Quang, Tran Phu Ward, Ha Tinh City, Ha Tinh Provine

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
{These notes form an Integral part of and should be read in confunction with the accompanying consolldmted financlal statements)

LOANS AND FINANACIAL DEBT (CONT'D)
{7) Common Bond Loans as follows:

T.1. Phu Xuan Consulting and Construction Joint Stock Company

- Bond Subscription Contract No. 01L/2020/HREMTP-VLP between the Company and Phu Xuan Consulting and Construction Joint Stock Company, dated
31 March 2020. The bond term is 10 years from the first issuance date on 3] December 2019, The bond issuance method is a private placement in accordance
with Decree 163/2018/ND-CP through an issuing agent. The bond's face value is VIND 100,000, The total issued bond value is VWD 372,000,000,000. The
number of issued bonds is 3,720,000. The issuance price is | 00% of the bond's face value. The issuance target includes fewer than 100 investors, excluding
professional investors, who are domestic organizations and individuals. The purpose of the issuance is to implement the company's investment projects.
The hond interest rate is a combination of fixed and floating rates. The interest rate for the first two payment periods is 10.5%/yvear, while the interest rate
for subsequent peniods is defermined by the Account Manngement and Payment Organization on the interest determination date, based on a fluctuation
margin of 3.5%vear and the average personal savings deposit interest rate.

- Bond Subscription Contract No. 042020/ HEBMTP-VLP between the Company and Phe Xuvan Consulting and Construction Joint Stock Company, dated
14 July 2020, The bond term is 10 years from the first issuance date on 31 December 2019. The bond issuance method is a private placement in accordance
with Decree 163/2018/ND-CP through an issuing agent. The bond's face value is VND 100,000, The total issued bond value is VWD 372,000,000,000, The
numier of isswed bonds is 3,720,000. The issuance price is 1 00% of the bond's face value, The issuance target includes fewer than 100 investors, excluding
professional investors, who are domestic organizations and individuals. The purpose of the issuance is to implement the company's investment projects.
The bond interest rate is a combination of fixed and floating rates. The interest rate for the first two payment periods is 10.5%/'year, whilc the interest rate
for subsequent periods is determined by the Account Management and Payment Organization on the interest determination date, based on a Muctuation
margin of 3.5%/year and the average personal savings deposit interest rate.

7.2, Dai Hiep Co., Lid,

- Bond Subscription Contract No. 03/2020/HDDMTP-VLP between the Company and Dai Hiep Co., Lid., dated 14 July 2020, The bond term is 10 years
from the first issuance date on 31 December 2019, The bond issuance method is a private placement in accordance with Decree 163/2018/MND-CP through
an issuing agent. The bond's face value is VND 100,000, The total issued bond valve is VIND 372,000,000,000. The number of issued bonds is 3,720,000
The issuance price is 100% of the bond's face value. The issuance target includes fewer than 100 investors, excluding professional investors, who are
domestic organizations and individuals, The purpose of the issuance is to implement the compeny's investment projects. The bond interest rate is a
combination of fixed and floating rates. The interest rate for the first two payment periods is 10.5%/year, while the interest rate for subsequent periods is
determined by the Account Management and Payment Organization on the interest determination date, based on a fluctuation margin of 3.5%/vear and the
average personal savings deposit interest rate.,
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HA TINH MINERALS AND TRAING CORPORATION
=JOINT STOCK COMPANY

No 2 Vu Quang, Tran Phu Ward, Ha Tinh City, Ha Tinh Provine
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTD)
(These motes form an integral part of and should be read in confunction with the accompanying consalidated financial statements)

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2024

22.  OWNER'S EQUITY

12.1 STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Contributed Surplus equity  Share fund Asset Development  Relained camings  Non-controlling Total
capital revaluation Investment inferests
difference Fund
VND VMD ¥ND YMD YND VND YND WMLy
05012023 1,100,135,914,618 4,087,045,423 (40,728, 29407 (1,053,097, 228) 33,609,203,745 (56,848,534, 6307  132,701,465,421 1,213,591, 269,059
- Capital - (45, 199,000 - - - 10,293, 199,000 1), 248, (00, (0
mereased
- Wed profit for - - - - (25,827,611 BE2) (18,042,980,331) {43,870,592,213)
the year
= Profit - - - 2, TOH), (D, 00 (30,323.870,79%)  (4,955,692.343)  (32,581,563,142)
digtritastion
+ Appropriation - - - 2, 700,808,000 {2, 700, 200, 000 - s
Fral
developwmeni
+ Approprigiion - - - (7,805,424, 336)  (1,089,942,343) (& 895, 366,670
tor borms and
welfare find
+ Diwidendy - - - - - [(F9.820, 4458 463} (3,845, 7500000 {23,086, 198, 463)
- Adjusted due - - (LA 119 6,177,073, 162 127,342,617 6,303,081 660
o
consolidation
effecls
JL22023 1,100,135,914,618 4,041,846,423 (40,728, 290) (1,053.097,118) 36,307, 869,626 (106,824,944,149) 120,123,334 364 1,153,690,195,364
52

TR- SR CH W |

Fa F 1]



HA TINH MINERALS AND TRAING CORPORATION
= JOINT STOCK COMPANY
No 2 Vu Quang, Tran Phu Ward, Ha Tinh City, Ha Tinh Provine

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2024

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
{Theze notes form an integral part of and thowld be read in confunction with the accompanying consolidated financlal siaiements)

r ODWNER'S EQUITY (CONT'D))
22,1 STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONT'IY)
Coniributed Surples equity  Share fund Aszei Development  Retained eamings  Non-controlling Taial
capital revaluation Imvestment inilerusis
difference Fund
YD VNI YND VND YND YND YD VND
01/01/2024 1,101,135,914,618  4,041,546,423 (40,728,290) (1,053,097.228) 36307869626 (106,524,944,149)  120,123,334,364  1,153,690,195,364
Net profit for
- s = 5 : 2 - 47,886,044.071  40,658,793,735 88, 544,837,806
Profi
- distributinn (*) & - - . 2.B69,158,819 (8,3638362,597)  (7.514,129.504)  (13,013,123,2482)
+ Appropriaiion
(]
— = = - - 2,069 168 K519 (2,869, 368, 810 .
lvesime
* Appropriation - - 2 - - (495,993,778  (LOMII4504)  (7,413,308,282)
to banes aid
- - ﬂf“d
+ Dividends - - = - - - (5.590.815,000) (5,599,815 000)
- {wmﬁ dug - - - = = (2,030,949,535) (110, 101,805) (2,141,061,340)
0
consolidetion
eftects
JFI22024

LI0L 135914 618 4,041 846,423 (40,728,290} (1,053,097,228)

39,177,238,445 _ (69,338,212,210) _ 153,157,886,790 1,227 080,848,548
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HA TINH MINERALS AND TRAING CORPORATION CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
—JOINT STOCK COMPANY For the vear ended 31 December 2024
No 2 Vu Quang. Tran Phu Ward, Ha Tirh City, Ha Tinh
Provine

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

{These rates form an imegral part of ead shawld be read In comfunchion with tfe aecompanying consolidated Enancisl siripments

21, OWNER'S EQUITY (CONT'D)
721 STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONT'D)

(*) According to the Resolution of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders dated 28
May 2024 No. 375/NQ-DHDCD TN/2024 of Lao-Viet Intermnational Port Joint Stock Company
- a subsidiary of the Corporation, the General Meeting of Sharcholders decided to approve the
profit distribution plan for 2023 including: Deduction of development investment fund and
welfare reward fund from undistributed profit after tax in 2023 with the amount of VND
5,413,503,433 and VIND 4,073,009,582 respectively and dividend payment to shareholders of:
WND 11,914,500,000.

According to the Resolution of the Board of Directors dated 18 June 2024 No. 48/NQ-HBQT
of Viet Lao One Member Co., Ltd. - a subsidiary of the Corporation, the 2023 profit distribution
plan is approved, including: Deduction of welfare reward fund of VWD 2,074,186,492 and
profit distribution of WIND 4,500,000,000.

The Corporation tempaorarily allocates the Welfare Reward Fund according to the Resolution
of the 2024 General Mecting of Shareholders with an amount of VND 1,266,112.208.

212 DETAILS OF OWNERS' EQUITY

3122024 0170172034

VND VND

- People's Committee of Ha Tinh province 1,072.153,514,618  1,072,153,914.618
- Onther shareholders 28,982,000,000 28,982,000,000
Total 1.101.135.914.618 1.100,135,914.618

223  EQUITY TRANSACTIONS WITH OWNERS AND DISTRIBUTION OF PROFITS

J1AER2024 01012024
YND YIND
Owmers” equity

+ Equity at beginning of year 1,101,135,914,61%8 1,101,135,914.618
+ Increase during the period - =
+ Decrease during the period = .
+ Equity at end of year 1,101,135,914,618  1,101,135,914,618
- Dividends paid - -

b R - .
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HA TINH MINERALS AND TRAING CORPORATION CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Mo 2 Vu Quang, Tran Phu Ward, Ha Tinh City, Ha Tinh

Frovine

For the year ended 31 December 2024

—

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT D)

{These notes form an infegral pard of ond showld be read in comiunciion with e accompanying consolidated financla? siaiements

22,

124

225

24.

OWNER'S EQUITY (CONT'D)

SHARES

- Awuthorized shares
Issued shares

+ Ordingry shares

=  Share m circulation

+ Ordinary shares

*  Par value (FNDvshare)

COMPANY'S RESERVES

= Development and investment funds
Total

FUNDING SOURCE

= Funding source
Total

3122024 01012024
Share Share
110,113,591 11001 13,5%]
110,113,591 110,113,531
110,113 581 Tl 13 507
110,113,591 110,113,%9]
Ti0 113 591 110,113 588
10, 000 40,0
317122024 010072024
VINE VIND

39,177,238,445 36,307,869,626

39,177, 238,445 Hﬂ?ﬁﬂ.ﬁlﬁ

311122024 010172024
VND VND

13,366, 780,204 13,659,562,904
13,366,780,204 13,659,562 904

Housing Project for Workers to Rent in Vung Ang Economic Zone (Low-inceme housing
project), the funding source supported by Ha Tinh Provincial People's Committee is VIND

57,300,000,000.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

Foreign currency
- USD

31/12/2024 01/01/2024

1.140,601.04 B05,565.33
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Ha TINH MINERALS AND TRAING CORPORATION OCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the vear ended 31 December 2024

— JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Mo 2 Vi Quang, Tran Pho Ward, Ha Tigh City, Ha Tirh
Frovine

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'DY)

{These nedes form an trggral part of aad shawld be read fa confurclion wilk the socomparping comsolidaied finaneial figlements

25, SALES OF MERCHANDISE AND SERVICES

Revenue

- Revenue from szles of goods and finished
products

- Revenue from service provision

- Revenne from construction activities

= Others

Total

6. REVENUE DEDUCTIONS

= Trade discounts
- oods sold are returned

Total

27, COST OF OODS 50LD

- Cost of gonds sold, finished prods snld
- Cost of services rendered

= Cost of construction activities

= Cost of other activities

- Provision for mventory devahiation
Total

28. FINANCIAL INCOME

- Interest income from deposis and loans
- Dividends and distributed profits

- Foreign exchanpe gams arising during the
- Foreign exchange gams from year-end
revaluation

Total

1,158,171,383,406

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
1,463,311,871,245  1,316,762,852,605

990,988, 564,382

200,311,149,643 325,774,288,223
13,146,643,379 -
1,682,694,817 -
1,463,311,871,245 _ 1,316,762,852,605
3112/2024 01/01/2024
VND. VND
2,731,984,799 1,632,682,398
25,855,300 7.814,250
2,757,840,099 ____ 1,640,496,648
31/12/2024 017012024
VND VND
1.030,045,351,708 G85,364, 164, 485
209,155,312,578 268,256,241,418
12,041, 417,830 -
19,065,702 A
- T.O73.079.019
1,251,261,147,908  1,261.593,684,912
122024 010172004
YND VD
8,132,502,660 10,531,248, 5%
11,654,966,360 6,264,980,000
1,493,469,057 B47,E50,010
5,525,133,861 3,900,756,540
26,506,071,938 21,553,835,15%6
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HA TINH MINERALS AND TRAING CORPORATION CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year anded 3] December 2024

— JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Mo 2 Vu Quang, Tran Pha Ward, Ha Tinh City, Ha Tinh

Provine

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

{These nodtes foem an integral part af ang showld be read in coniuncion with the accompanyng comselidaned financial srafememis

9.

3.

31.

FINANCIAL EXPENSES

- Loan mterest expenses
- Exchange rate difference bosses arising
- (Reversal)provision for investment losses

Total

OTHER INCOME

- Proceeds from hgusdation and salke of fived
RESELT

- Compensation meome

- Ingome from the ransfer of Huong Son
Dieer Breedmg Joint Stock Company

- Income from loan mterest write-off

- Other meome

Total

OTHER EXPENSES

= Mine clogure costs
- Depreciation costs for decommissioned

= Original price of Huong Son Deer Breeding

Jomt Stock Company
- Fines

- Others

Total

3171212024 01/01/2024
VND VND
13,726,347.259 16,554,291,105
2,642,489,323 455,973,513
260,630,468 343,636,006
16,629,467,050 17,353,900,714
IV 22024 012024
VND VND
514,038,233 1,515,348,977
1,632,668, 565 4,029,238,120
- 1.330,000,000

2 822,337,153 .
3,104,348 097 200,741,045
7,433,392,050 7,075,318, 151
317122024 DLA01/2024
YIND YD

£20 808 000 :
78,800, 180 26,283,855

i 812 682 00D

126,480,379 53,257,745
528,151,060 434,122,724
1,655,285,276 1,386,346,324
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HA TINH MINERALS AND TRAING CORFORATION

= JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Mo 2 VuQuang, Tran Phu Ward, Ha Tinh City, Ha Tinh

Provine

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the wear ended 31 Dwcesmber 2034

NOTES TD CONSODLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT™D)
{These rates form an imegral part of and showld be read in comimction with the secomparving corsolidaed fnarcis? saremeni

3.

SELLING EXPENSES AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

- (Reversal)'Contingency expenses

- Cost of services purchased from outside
- Others

Sales expenses

- Raw material and material costs

- StafT costs

- Fiooed asset depreciafion costs

- Cost of services purchased from outside
- Oithers

Tuotal

OPERATING EXPENSES BY NATURE

- Rew material costs

= Labor costs

- Depreciation of fixed assets

- Cost of services purchased from outzide
- Expenses in other currencies

Total

311252024 01ANL 2024
VIND VND
91,600,617, 185 70,454, 468,966
31,314,696,292 AT, 118,134,646
T 17TR BRT.AT3 1,474, 278,770
3,875,407,785 2,760,212,469
2,902,087,495 (7,276,685,244)
19,528,479,081 18,632,308,565
26,800,139,139 17,746,219, 760
37,112,840,804 26,659,427, 412
4,649,086,651 1,737,008,779
5.303.191,286 T. 778,493,727
329,249,425 432, 089,692
23,212,155,682 13,455,471,405
3,619, 157,760 3,256,362 B0O

128,713,457,989

97,113,8%6,378

3171272024 01/0172024
VMDD YD

863, 732,576,500 790,292,519, 796
150,556,414, 459 142,942 391,082
63,218,954, 188 65,591,318,252

235,503,132,09?2
87002 337,341

245 709 A71 757
36,647,100, 78D

CURRENT CORPORATE INCOME TAX EXFENSE

- Current corporate income tax expenscs at
the parent company

= Curment earporate meome tax expenses at
+ Viet Lag Company Limited

+ Lao Viet International Port Compary Limiie

1,502,193.424,590 _ 1.280,773.050,702

31/12/2024 01/01/2024

VND VND
9,273,584,119 9,021,577,913
1,142 328 452 2,024,728 832
8,131,255,667 5,996,549,08)
9,273.584.119 9,021,577.913
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HA TINH MINERALS AND TRAING CORPORATION CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
= JOINT STOCK COMPANY For the year ended 31 December 2024
Mo 2 Ve Cuang. Trar Phu Ward, Ha Tinh City, Ha Tinh
Proine
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT D)
{These modes form an iniggral part of and shoutd be read i corfurerion with the accompanying cantalidated finanein! sictements

35, DEFERRED CORPORATE INCOME TAX EXPENSE

2111272024 01012024
VND YMND
- Differences from corporate mocome tax 197,701,890 2.917,816,135
arising from taxable temporary differences
Total 197,701,899 2917.816.135
36. BASIC/ DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

I1A2/2024 01012024
- Profit after corporate income tax of parent 47,886,044,071 (25,827,611,882)
company shareholders
- Profits distributed to shareholders owning 47, 886,044,071 (25,827,611,882)
common slares
- Appropriastion 10 bonus and welfare fund (1,266,112,208) -
- Profit cakulated as basic interest per share 46,619,931,863 (25,827,611,882)
= Weighted average number of shares 110,113,591 110,113,591
outstanding during the year
Basic earnings per share 423 (235}

The Cerporation does not have any shares with potential dilution of eamings per share.
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HA TINH MINERALS AND TRAING CORPORATION
= JOINT STOCK COMPANY

No 2 Vu Quang, Tran Phu Ward, Ha Tinh City, Ha Tinh Provine

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year eaded 31 December 2024

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
{These notes form an integral part of and should be read in confunction with the accompanying consolidated financial statemests)

37. SEGMENT'S REPORT
Items Mineral Mining Agriculture  Seaportservices Construction and Other operations Total parts reported Elimination Totol of reportable
production of segmends
YD VD VNI VNI VD VND YD YN
BUSINESS RESULTS BY SEGCMENTS
Met revemee from 22780 318,178 TSR BIOA0TATY  271,906,355194  367.424,705506 39613244789 1 460,554,001, 146 - 1460554031, 146
sale of goods and
rendering of
BETVICES
Met revemus [rom - 63,565,026,575 - 295,612,701,955 GAELAN1,270 365,659,169 806  [1664B0,278,049) e 1TH 891,757
gale to other
diz partmeenis
Profit from (2426893,131F 75962086960 BE302,T0R 144  50,294.726499 (3 A3 T45204)  209,292.843,.233% 209,291 883,238
operating
mctivities
ASSETS
Tot incurred cost 36,996,759 4.516.2187,722 2A18.849,195 1, 798,062,200 | B, 250,951 10630 446,827 - 10,5630446,827
for purchrsing
fxed aggets
Segmenls’ assets 319,030,654,044  298.875.521.204  993,128,056,852 245466,201,066 155656,208,640 2012,176731,815 (83 9.098,749.690) 1,173,077982,125
Unallocated azseis - - - - - Q33. 737,739,548 - 033,737, 719,548
Total Asseis 219, 54044 2 521,204 99312 6452 14 1066 15 DH.640 2945904 471 363 IEE-B_.,I'IH,'H‘,!ESI]]- Eﬂﬁﬁl.&,ﬂ]é?;
LIABILITIES
ﬁ:w 5. 188059306 207,304 486,203 716,506,380,502 204,411,090426  102,082,808,613 [235.492,825,650 (582911278493} 652 581,547,157
Liis
Limalloceted - - - - - 213, 7THG,545, 764
limbilitics rd =y Z213,786,545,764

Total Liabilities 5,188,059,306 207 36,803 716,506,380,502 204, 411,090,426 102,082, 508,613  1,449,279.371,414

(582,911,278.493) 866,368,092 921
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38. INFORMATION ABOUT STAKEHOLDERS

No Mame Relationship
1 Ha Timh Materizls and Construction Joint Stock Company Associates

The Corporation has no transactions in 2024 and the balance at the end of the year ended on 31

December 2024 with related parties.
The income e period iv ag e
Year 2024 Year 2023
WIND VIND
Boanl of Management 1,931,511,004 1,637,694,000
Chairman of the 474,000,000
= Mr. Nguyen Dinh Toan Board of Directors HHA 76,000
= Mr.Le Viet Thao Member of the 583,829 000 486,842,000
Bioard of Directors
and General Director
= Mr. Vo Van Luu Member of the 444 589,000 366,538.000
Board of Dircctors
and Deputy General
Director
- Mr. Npuyen Anh Thang Member of the 428,793,000 366,538,000
Board of Directors
nand Deputy General
Director
Head of the Board of Supervisors 436,200,000 376,585,000
- Mr. Phung Van Tan ﬂu:l: of contral 273,000,000 239,313,000
= Mr. Dao Anh Dung Member 163,200,000 137,272,000
= Ms. Tran Thi Thanh Van hMember - :
39, OTHER INFORMATION
39.1. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Corporation signs land lease contracis at:
Location Purpose of use | Rental period | Rental area Rental
ammuni
Block 09, Thach Ha Coastruction of From 2017 to 12,859 m2 | Pay annual
Town, Thack Ha District, | a deer velvet 2054 land rent.
Ha Tinh product
processing plant l
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39,  OTHER INFORMATION (CONT'D)

39.1. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (CONT’D)

The Corperate signs land lease contracts at: (Cont'd)

Loecation Purpose of use | Rental period | Rental area Rental
amount
Group 12, Cam Xuyen Constructionof | From 2015 to 10,221.1 m2 | Pay annual
Town, Cam Xuyen a non-fired brick 2053 land rent.
District, Ha Tinh Province | factory
Group 08, Dau Lieu Organic bio- From 2014 to 7,369 m2 Pay annual
Ward, Hong Linh Town, | fertilizer land rent.
Ha Tinh Province production plant
Ky Khang commune, Ky | Office From200410 | 72,77932m2 | Pay annual |
Anh district; Group 12, 2054 land rent.
Cam Xuyen town, Cam
Xuyen district; Group 7,
Tran Phu ward, Ha Tinh
city
Block 09, Thach Ha town, | Factory for From 2017 to 12,859 m2 Pay annual |
Thach Ha district, Ha processing 2054 land rent.
Tinh province products from
deer antlers
Group 12, Cam Xuyen Central From 2013 to 33212 m2 | Pay annual
town, Cam Xuyen district, | Vocational 2050 land rent.
Ha Tinh province School
Tan Phuc Hamlet, Huong | Making Gypsum | From 2012 to 22 8566 m2 | Pay annual
Trach Commune, Huong | Transit 2062 land rent.
Khe Disirict, Ha Tinh Warehouse
Province
Dong Trinh block, Ky Clean Chuartz Since 2009 and 16,5109 m2 | Pay annual
Trinh ward, Ky Anh town | Mine Service currently in the land rent,
process of
rénewing land
lease
Ky Phong Commune, Ky | Construction of | Land leaseterm | 175,765 m2 | Pay annual
Anh District, Ha Tinh Mitraco Pig until 08 August land rent.
Province Breeding 2024
Production
Center
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29, OTHER INFORMATION (CONT'D)
39.1. OFERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (CONT'D)
The Corporation signs land lease contracts at: (Cont"d)
Location Purpose of use | Rental period | Rental area | Rental amount
Thach Vinh Construction of | Lease term until | 197,227.4m2 | Pay annual land
Commune, Thach Ha | office and 0082054 rent.
District, Ha Tinh livesiock area
Province
Phu Loc Commune, Pig farming From 969,001.8 m2 | Pay annual land
Thuong Nga 13092010 to rent.
Commune, Can Lo 07/03/2038
Dyistrict, Ha Tinh
Province
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40. INFORMATION ABOUT GOING CONCERN

As of 31 December 2024, many subsidiaries and associates of the Corporation have current

liabilities exceeding current assets, and the accumulated

losses presented in the balance sheet exceed the owners' equity. This situation presents uncertainties that may affect the ability of these subsidiaries and

associates to continue 45 going concerns, specifically as follows:

Cu bilitles
N an:m.::l;::umt Uwner's Equity iy -‘\“:::::hd
e (MS410) (MS411) (MS421)

- Mitraco Infrastructure Development and Construction Investment Mot exceeded 431,217,132 18,000,000,000 (14,568, 782 168)
Company Limibed

- Mitraco Livestock Joint Stock Company Mot exceeded  42,020,758,355  40,000,000,000 {24,267,064,559)
= Ha Tinh Agriculture and Forestry Development Joint Stock Company Mot exceeded  39.401,738,267  60,000,000,000 (Z27.418,598.00T
= Thien Loc Animal Feed Joint Stock Company 1,225 418,434 2 271,971,233 30, D0, DR, CR0 (23,368,978,731)
- Mitraco Trading Joint Stock Company 152,367,697  (2,253,429,274)  £,000,000,000  (10,358,793,274)
- Mitraco Mechenical and Construction Joint $tock Company 4,893,029.526  (4,358,298,850)  4,500,000,000  (8,870,338,973)
- Thian ¥ 2 Joint Stock Company 2,893.,440,504 2218.535.814 B, D00 D00, Ry (6,191,792 6867
- Mitraco Seeds and Agricultural Materiaks Company Limided 508,921,066 (275,701,634) 11,000,000, 000 (11,275,701,634)
- Mitraco Marine Food Processing Company Limited 21,0018,7I9375  (46,030,636,054)  30,000,000,000 (76.030,636,054)
- Manganese Minerals Joint Stock Company 188,422,279 (2,155,208,743)  31,600,000,000 (43.327,614,588)
- Transport and Construction Joint Stock Company Mot exceeded (904,911,856) 1,447 620,000 {2.365124-5,356}
- Mitraco Brick Packaging Joint Stock Company 34,389,356,275  (34,389,356,275)  20,000,000,000 (54,389,356,275)
- Thach Khe lron Materials and Additives Joint Stock Company L106,043,474  (1,106,043,474) 13,500,000,000  (14,606,043,474)
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40,  INFORMATION ABOUT GOING CONCERN (CONT'D)

For the group of three companies, including Mitraco Livestock Joint Stock Company, Ha Tinh
Agriculture and Forestry Development Joint Stock Company, and Thien Loc Animal Feed Joint
Stock 'l:umpﬂa:l}' production and business activities in 2024 have improved due to a significant
increase in pig selling prices compared to 2023, At the same time, the cost of raw matedals for
animal feed production has adjusted downwand, while supply remains limited due to the impact
of disease outbreaks on pig herds. These companies have taken advantage of favarable market
conditions to sell their products to purchasing entities, therehy improving production efficiency.
Additionally, they have received support from banks, sharcholders, and suppliers to ensure
sufficient working capital for business operations and reinvestrment.

For the group of five companies, including Mitraco Infrastructure Development and Construction
Investment Co., Lid, Mitraco Trading Joimt Stock Company, Mitraco Mechanical and
Construction Joint Stock Company, Thien Y 2 Joint Stock Company, and Mitraco Seeds and
Agricultural Materials Company Limited, their management boards are currently developing
business plans to ensure profitability in 2025 and subsequent years to offset losses incurred in
Previoas Years,

Far the group of six companies, including Mitraco Marine Food Processing Company Limited,
Manganese Minerals Joint Stock Company, Transport and Construetion Joint Stock Company,
Mitraco Brick Packaging Joint Stock Company, Thach Khe Iron Materials and Additives Joint
Stock Company, and Ha Tinh Materials and Construction Joint Stock Company, the parent
company—Ha Tinh Minerals and Trading Corporation JSC—is formulating a plan to divest from
these subsidiaries that have been experiencing prolonged losses and inefficiencies i production
and business activites.

Accordingly, the Board of General Directors of the Corporation has assessed that the assumption
of the subsidianies” ability to continue as a going concern in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended December 11, 2024, is appiopiiate.

41. EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE END OF THE ACCOUNTING PERIOD

The Board of Directors of the Corporation confirms that there have been no events subsequent to
the balance sheet date that would require adjustment to or disclosure in the consolidated financil
statements,

42. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Comparative Aigures an the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024
are the data on the Consolidated Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 December 2023 that

have been audited..
Hﬂ :ﬁrr.‘! 25 Morch 2025
Freparer Chief Accountant ;
//m
- :
.Ir"'-.quﬁ_._,_,.,-r"--. :
Nguyen Duy Thanh Bui ".-"an Minh
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